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  1       VAN NUYS, CALIFORNIA; WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 6, 2014

  2                          6:32 P.M.

  3

  4             MR. CANO:  Good evening, Everybody.  Welcome

  5   to the San Fernando Valley Service Council.  We are

  6   going to have two items today -- the regular meeting and

  7   also the public hearing.  So I ask your patience, and

  8   we'll make sure everyone who wants to speak is heard.

  9             Let's start with the Pledge of Allegiance.

 10   I'll ask Mr. Washburn to lead us today.

 11             (Pledge of Allegiance.)

 12             MR. CANO:  Thank you.  I encourage anyone who

 13   has a cell phone that's going to be buzzing around to

 14   silence it.  I always forget mine.

 15             First item up for consideration is the minutes

 16   of the July 2nd, 2014, meeting.  And seeing that we had

 17   pretty much everyone here, that everyone participated in

 18   this, I'll take a motion on this if there are no

 19   questions or additions or revisions.

 20             MR. WASHBURN:  Approval.

 21             MR. CANO:  Motion to second.  Hearing no

 22   objection, such will be the order.  The minutes are

 23   approved.

 24             Item 3, the Chair's Remarks.  Let's make sure

 25   I don't have any comment cards here.  There is an item
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  1   -- some people asked to speak for Item 3, but that is

  2   for the public hearing.  Wait until then.

  3             Chair's Comments, I don't really have many,

  4   except I think it's going to be something this Council

  5   should start discussing a little more is now that the

  6   Orange Line is being realistically talked about as

  7   having a changed future in terms of rail conversion or

  8   upgrades or something.

  9             There was a motion that was approved by the

 10   Metro Board to begin the process.  Mr. Krekorian,

 11   Councilman Krekorian, led the effort.  And Supervisor

 12   Antonovich, Yaroslavsky joined with Mayor Garcetti, as

 13   did Director Fasana and Najarian to put forth that

 14   motion.

 15             The concept is basically how do we create a

 16   high-capacity transit corridor between the Orange Line

 17   Warner Center to Pasadena, what does that mean for the

 18   Orange Line, what does that mean from North Hollywood to

 19   the airport, from the airport to Pasadena.  This is

 20   something that's just beginning the input stage,

 21   beginning the studying stage.

 22             So I would invite this Council, if you want to

 23   have items in the future discussing it or just talking

 24   about what upgrades we need for the Orange Line if it

 25   doesn't get converted, I would be happy to have us
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  1   agendize that.  We'll keep it on our radar.

  2             Other than that, I don't have any other

  3   comments for this evening.

  4             MR. WASHBURN:  Michael, can I ask you a

  5   question on that?

  6             MR. CANO:  Please.

  7             MR. WASHBURN:  Was there any discussion of

  8   long-range transportation plan budgeting predictions or

  9   thought for the actual conversion itself?

 10             MR. CANO:  The actual conversion, given the

 11   current constraints in the long-range plan, probably

 12   would not be feasible financially.  It probably would be

 13   rolled into the large discussion of is there another

 14   measure that comes forward for transportation in 2016.

 15   And even that's not for certain, but it could be.

 16             So this is paving the ground for that

 17   discussion so that if there are projects that need to be

 18   included in the sales tax measure or some other measure,

 19   this will be an eligible one.  But as of now, we don't

 20   have any money.

 21             MR. WASHBURN:  Thanks.

 22             MR. CANO:  "Public comment for items not on

 23   the agenda," Item 4, I have several speakers here.  I'll

 24   give you two guesses as to who they are.  Vince Garofalo

 25   followed by Nate Zablen.
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  1             MR. GAROFALO:  Good evening.  On the last

  2   month, I spoke about the bus driver that passed me up.

  3   In all fairness, I wish to commend him with regard to

  4   his, I guess, sensitivity because he has not passed me

  5   up and even mentioned the Sunday after that that he, you

  6   know, didn't mean to do it.  So I wish to commend him

  7   with regard to that.

  8             In other matters, on the San Fernando

  9   Boulevard/Van Nuys Boulevard, there was some -- there

 10   were some constructions, and the stops were moved up.

 11   The construction has since been taken care of, and the

 12   stop is further closer to Van Nuys Boulevard, where an

 13   individual doesn't have to hike, you know, to catch the

 14   233 or the other one going down Van Nuys.

 15             The driver today on that bus said that they

 16   are not allowed to stop at that stop where there is, in

 17   fact, a legitimate stop.

 18             And the San Fernando/Ventura Boulevard stop,

 19   specifically on Sepulveda Boulevard that goes all the

 20   way to Sylmar, has got to be restored.  The hike over on

 21   the other side, the southwest, I guess, of Van Nuys to

 22   that bus stop is a chore.  I know people who have

 23   children who had to run to catch that bus.  So please

 24   take that under consideration.  Thank you.

 25             MR. CANO:  Okay.  Comments are noted.  Thank
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  1   you.

  2             Mr. Zablen, and then following will be Andrew

  3   Wang.

  4             MR. ZABLEN:  Good evening, Council Members.

  5   I'm Nate Zablen.  I'm on the Executive Board of the

  6   Southern California Transit Advocates.

  7             I was going to comment on some of the service

  8   changes, but unfortunately, there weren't a lot of

  9   enhancements to bus service in the Valley.  And I was

 10   disappointed and have been for a number of years.

 11             I think especially the north-south buses that

 12   run in this region that has about 2 million people,

 13   including Glendale and Burbank, and you offer kind of

 14   like a lifeline service where these north-south lines

 15   which connect with the Orange Line run basically once an

 16   hour and stop at 8:00 o'clock.

 17             I think as part of the enhancement of the

 18   Orange Line, you have to improve the connectivity.

 19   That's important.  One shouldn't have to wait an hour

 20   for a connecting bus if one is a long-time user of Metro

 21   and getting off at Woodman or Balboa because sometimes

 22   the connections -- you might miss your connection or

 23   something like that.  There might be a breakdown.

 24             So I wish that would be a priority because,

 25   you know, I heard they are talking about making the
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  1   Orange Line a light rail line.  But the important thing

  2   is to enhance the Orange Line, have better connectivity.

  3   Make it easier to use to reach that bus.

  4             And also somehow prioritize those signals

  5   because it does make a lot of stops.  And I know it is

  6   because of the Orange Line.  You have to be very

  7   careful.  But the red lights, especially in Tujunga,

  8   they really slow the Orange Line.

  9             So I think there should be more focus, not so

 10   much on the long-term change of the Orange Line to a

 11   light rail but on improving it for the 2 million-plus

 12   people.  And the Valley is very different from what it

 13   was.  It has increased in population.  They supported

 14   Measure R by a large margin.  And I don't know really if

 15   the people in the Valley are going to support the

 16   Measure R2 unless there are enhancements to bus service.

 17             And it shouldn't really cost that much.  I

 18   think you can modify some routes.  The important thing

 19   is to serve those areas where there is higher ridership.

 20   That's basically the Orange Line stops on streets like

 21   Woodman because the Valley has redeveloped over 10

 22   years.  It's not like it was in the '50s and '60s.  And

 23   these lines were started in the '50s.  And they need an

 24   improvement before you convert to Orange Line to a light

 25   rail.  Thank you.
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  1             MR. CANO:  Thank you.  And I'll use my

  2   discretion on this.  I did want to raise a couple

  3   things.  First one is I always drive Chandler on the way

  4   here just to kind of pace the bus, and I'm not buying

  5   L.A. DOT's comments that, "Well, it will just mess up

  6   traffic if we get some preemption."

  7             The bus stops for about 30-40 seconds at

  8   Colfax and Bellaire.  These are small streets compared

  9   to the Coldwaters and Lankershims.  So I'm not buying on

 10   the smaller streets that we can't do anything for that.

 11   And I know we have a new L.A. DOT general manager.  And

 12   I know there's been some discussion about maybe some

 13   flexibility.

 14             Maybe we can agendize that for a month or two,

 15   three, sometime, to bring that issue back.  Because I

 16   was counting at least two minutes of lost time with the

 17   bus waiting, not just for the traffic to move, but there

 18   are even green arrows that move traffic ahead of it.

 19   That doesn't make sense.

 20             MR. HILLMER:  We are, in fact, working on a

 21   program for long-term improvements for the Orange Line

 22   but also near-term improvements.  Mr. Spivack has put

 23   together a 16-page document that details some of the

 24   things that can be done both near term and far term.

 25   They do include working with the City in terms of
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  1   improving the signal priority and looking at those

  2   smaller cross streets where the Orange Line should get

  3   even more priority, maybe preemption.

  4             MR. CANO:  And the second thing -- I probably

  5   should have included this in my Chair Remarks, but this

  6   will suffice.  When we move to the fare increase, we

  7   also have the free transfer within the two-hour window.

  8   That's going to need a lot of outreach, and I know that

  9   Metro is preparing that.  But it's also going to allow

 10   us to reenvision how our service runs.

 11             You can maybe run more of a true grid system.

 12   Maybe you can create more efficiencies because transfers

 13   are going to be less of a deterrent because you'll take

 14   away the price penalty.  There will still be a time

 15   penalty, but the price penalty will go away for most of

 16   our riders.  So maybe we can also bring back whoever is

 17   doing that to start working on that.

 18             MR. HILLMER:  That will, in fact, enhance the

 19   opportunity for people to use -- to transfer users to

 20   higher speed, higher capacity systems such as the Orange

 21   Line, Red Line and our rail lines as well as our Rapid

 22   Bus Service.  With no price penalty for making a

 23   transfer, people will be more willing to take advantage

 24   of timesavers.

 25             MR. CANO:  That is my commentary.  I apologize
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  1   to Mr. Wang, who is next to speak.  Please.

  2             MR. WANG:  Good afternoon.  I'm Andrew Wang,

  3   and I stated that I'm representing LACBC, which is the

  4   Los Angeles County Bike Coalition, although what I have

  5   to say has nothing to do about that.

  6             But I did want to mention that regarding the

  7   thought of wanting to convert the Orange Line to a

  8   rail -- into a light rail, I have no problem about that,

  9   which is I have to say because that's something we could

 10   look into as well.

 11             And one other thing is actually -- that I did

 12   want to mention is regarding the fare increase.  I was

 13   thinking possibly you can look into a student fare

 14   option as well too when you do that increase, like a

 15   student fare discount option where students present like

 16   a valid vocational or college or whatever ID card that

 17   they can pay like a lesser fare like -- I mean, I'm

 18   talking about actually when the fare increase takes

 19   place.

 20             MR. WEISSMAN:  The student fare didn't

 21   increase.

 22             MR. WANG:  Well, so I was thinking -- well, I

 23   was thinking that possibly that's something that can

 24   possibly be looked into as well.  Maybe like when they

 25   do the fare increase, also consider a student fare as
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  1   well.

  2             MR. CANO:  Thank you for your comments.

  3   Appreciate them.

  4             That brings us to the conclusion of Item No. 4

  5   and brings us to Item No. 5, the update on the Red

  6   Line-Orange Line Pedestrian Tunnel.  Mr. Joshi.

  7             MR. JOSHI:  Good evening, Chair and Members of

  8   Council.  My name is Milind Joshi, and I'm the project

  9   manager at Metro for this underpass project.  I'll give

 10   you a brief summary that describes the nature of the

 11   project.

 12             This is the Red Line station, and this is the

 13   Orange Line terminus here.  There is a tremendous amount

 14   of pedestrian traffic between the two termination

 15   points -- the Red Line as well as the Orange Line.  And

 16   it causes safety concerns, major safety concerns.  At

 17   the same time, it causes traffic congestion on

 18   Lankershim Boulevard.

 19             This particular project will construct an

 20   underpass that will connect the Red Line station with

 21   the Orange Line.  The station is under this portion of

 22   Lankershim Boulevard.

 23             In this project, there is a wall at the north

 24   Chandler area that will be knocked out.  There is a

 25   panel.  And in this area, there will be a new entrance
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  1   that will connect both the station and the Orange Line

  2   by way of escalators and elevators.  There will be two

  3   elevators situated here and escalators.

  4             So the passengers, the commuters, can use the

  5   escalator and cross over.  There will be ticket vending

  6   machines here.  And then over here, they can get into

  7   the station.

  8             Now, there is also another -- this entrance

  9   will still be functional.  There will be a ticket

 10   vending machine here as well.  There essentially is two

 11   entry points for the patrons of public transits to come

 12   from the Orange Line or from the Red Line.

 13             The project is a design build nature of

 14   project.  And at this point, we are just about

 15   80 percent design work done.  And the construction

 16   activities are scheduled to begin sometime during next

 17   month.  And the overall project is supposed to be

 18   completed by spring of 2016.

 19             And Skanska is the contractor.  And Akin are

 20   the design partners.

 21             Any questions?

 22             MR. CANO:  I have some, but I'll hold until

 23   Mr. Washburn.

 24             MR. WASHBURN:  I would ask because I'm

 25   relatively new to the Council why this wasn't built in
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  1   the first place?  Because it's a welcomed change and

  2   addition.  It's vitally necessary, and I'm happy to see

  3   the progress on it.  I don't understand the history on

  4   it.  So maybe you might be able to share that with us?

  5             MR. JOSHI:  Unfortunately, I'm also not aware

  6   of the past history.  But definitely, this project was

  7   approved by the Board, and I said, "That's it.  It is

  8   approved.  We're working on it."

  9             MR. WASHBURN:  Can't be done soon enough.

 10             MR. CANO:  I have questions for you.  How many

 11   escalators and how many elevators and how much width is

 12   there on the stairs on that portal on the west side?

 13             MR. JOSHI:  The escalators, there will be two

 14   escalators.

 15             MR. CANO:  One up, one down?

 16             MR. JOSHI:  No.  One escalator that will take

 17   up to an intermediate level and then to the plaza level.

 18             MR. CANO:  So --

 19             MR. JOSHI:  So one escalator in that, from the

 20   perspective of what you are asking.  One escalator.  But

 21   it will be in two sections.

 22             MR. CANO:  So basically, the escalator will

 23   only be available for ingress or egress, but not both

 24   ways that we have usually?

 25             MR. JOSHI:  Yes.  Only to come up.
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  1             MR. CANO:  Why is that the case?  Because

  2   there will be a lot of traffic both ways.  It's not

  3   going to be one-way traffic.

  4             MR. JOSHI:  That's -- I will look into that.

  5             MR. CANO:  Is there room for another

  6   escalator?

  7             MR. JOSHI:  The room is about 20 feet of width

  8   available.

  9             MR. CANO:  I mean, I want to know is it a

 10   funding issue?  A design issue?

 11             MR. JOSHI:  I will have to find out the

 12   history of why it was selected the way it is.

 13             MR. CANO:  Because this Council actually

 14   helped push for a second elevator instead of one.  We're

 15   trying to get more disabled access to the station.  So

 16   that was helpful.

 17             But I'm concerned that, if it's just one

 18   escalator functional in one direction, what the impacts

 19   would be on the elevators because on our stations,

 20   usually we have the elevators are crowded with bikes,

 21   not just people with wheelchairs, but bikes and luggage.

 22   And the escalators take a lot of the burden.

 23             So if people are taking the elevator instead

 24   of the escalator, it's going to create a larger demand

 25   for that use space as opposed to what it's reserved for.
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  1   I'm concerned about that.

  2             MR. JOSHI:  I will check on that.  I will

  3   definitely make -- you know, at this point, I have not

  4   seen the escalator specifications; so I want to make

  5   sure what I answer, I give you, is accurate information.

  6   And as far as the elevator is concerned, there will be

  7   two.

  8             MR. WEISSMAN:  According to the schematic on

  9   the report, and I take it from your comments, you can

 10   get from the bus, take a down escalator, and walk across

 11   to the train, to the subway.  But you don't have the

 12   same convenience when you get off the subway and want to

 13   go to the bus.  There's no escalator up.

 14             MR. JOSHI:  That's what I will check.  That's

 15   what I will check to make sure that -- what is the

 16   project and what is the functionality of the escalator.

 17             MR. WEISSMAN:  It sure doesn't make sense to

 18   have it one way unless you want to trap everybody down

 19   there.

 20             MR. CANO:  Gary.

 21             MR. SPIVACK:  I participated in some of the

 22   design elements.  The reason we don't have two

 23   escalators is there's not enough room between the

 24   sidewalk and the box and then the pedestrian way that's

 25   available.  It is just a space issue.  It was one of the
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  1   reasons why we convinced them to add a second elevator.

  2   The escalator will be in the up position to bring people

  3   up from downstairs.  And the stairway will be used for

  4   people going downstairs, or they can use the elevators.

  5             MR. CANO:  Why wouldn't we have more --

  6   another escalator that will function as a staircase?

  7             MR. WEISSMAN:  That's completely inefficient.

  8             MR. SPIVACK:  It's not my desired outcome.

  9   Certainly Universal City is the same way.  We have up

 10   escalators but no down escalators.

 11             MR. WEISSMAN:  At Universal City, you have two

 12   different locations to enter the station.  One goes one

 13   way and the other goes the other way.  If you want to

 14   walk around, you can do that.  It does not make sense

 15   that you are taking such a population-laden area and

 16   limiting it to only one way when what you are trying to

 17   -- what you are creating is people are going to ignore

 18   this and cross the street because that's the quicker way

 19   out.

 20             They will take the escalator out.  They will

 21   go up the up.  They will turn left and run across the

 22   street to catch a bus, which is exactly what you are

 23   trying to avoid with people by building this underpass.

 24   It seems like it's a half-assed, one-way, halfway job

 25   and not complete at all.
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  1             MR. SPIVACK:  Mr. Weissman, I certainly agree

  2   with your sentiment.  As I said, it's not my desired

  3   outcome.

  4             MR. WEISSMAN:  I understand.  And I'm not

  5   harping at you, Gary.  You're just the messenger.  But

  6   whoever thought this through must have been asleep

  7   halfway through the idea.

  8             MR. SPIVACK:  I think next time we should get

  9   the company architect to come out because --

 10             MR. WEISSMAN:  Tell him to wear his armor.  I

 11   understand it could be budgetary in certain respects as

 12   well.  But to say, "This is the space we have to do, and

 13   this is what we are going to do," it's not thought

 14   through.  Maybe they should be tasked with going to the

 15   area and riding the subways for a week or two at a time

 16   and see the inconvenience that they are creating with

 17   the mass of people who use this area.

 18             MR. SPIVACK:  Understood.

 19             MR. CANO:  Well, when they come back, if they

 20   can answer the question about can you take some of the

 21   width of the staircase away to put in a second

 22   escalator, which would double as a staircase when it is

 23   stationary or broken down, that would add more

 24   flexibility to the system.

 25             MR. JOSHI:  All right.
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  1             MR. CANO:  So you started construction

  2   already?

  3             MR. JOSHI:  Yes.  We have done some

  4   preliminary work.  But the construction will begin

  5   sometime late this month or early next month.

  6             MR. CANO:  Agendize this for next month with

  7   the architect and the appropriate people.

  8             Thank you.

  9             MR. JOSHI:  Thanks.

 10             MR. CANO:  Any further questions on this item?

 11   Mr. Washburn.

 12             MR. WASHBURN:  It says project duration is

 13   approximately two years, and it tells you when it is

 14   going to start and stop.  Are we trying to meet some

 15   other deadline combination?  Or if we had another three

 16   months, might we be able to resolve these problems so

 17   that we don't do the half-baked job we are talking

 18   about?

 19             MR. JOSHI:  Well, essentially, if there is any

 20   significant change of this nature, first of all, we will

 21   have to evaluate if that is feasible or not technically

 22   and fiscally, and then we will have to change all the

 23   plans.  So this will basically be an extremely long

 24   delay, if not a couple of more additional years and

 25   added cost.  Because as I said, the design is about over
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  1   80 percent complete at this point, and construction --

  2             MR. WASHBURN:  It appears there is a lot of

  3   limiting variables here.  If there is 20-foot width --

  4   I'm looking at the schematics in this, and it shows that

  5   they are essentially side by side at opposed to stacked.

  6   If there is room enough to get from the lower level to

  7   mid level and then mid level to upper level, if

  8   Nordstrom can figure out a way to put two escalators in

  9   that same space, we should be able to do that, unless it

 10   is strictly a budgetary issue.  If it is budgetary, this

 11   is not, frankly, good budgeting management, it seems to

 12   me.

 13             MR. CANO:  I would add to that that if you

 14   would pose this to the Metro Board saying that you are

 15   about to do a program where you have one escalator at

 16   the busiest transfer station in the system, then I think

 17   they might reconsider the budget part.

 18             MR. WASHBURN:  I wonder if they are not aware.

 19             MR. CANO:  That's what I'm thinking.  I don't

 20   think they are quite aware of the limitations.

 21             MR. WASHBURN:  That's a different question,

 22   then.  Does a proposal like this get to the service

 23   councils as a means of testing the water?  Or is it, in

 24   fact, something that is voted and looked at by Board

 25   and/or Board staff?
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  1             MR. JOSHI:  Well, when I get the project for

  2   execution, it has gone through all the processes, I'm

  3   assuming or expecting.

  4             MR. WASHBURN:  Okay.  I think we're all

  5   curious to see what the original plan was, what the

  6   budget limitations are, and what it does to affect the

  7   timing because we're already at very high-capacity usage

  8   on the Orange Line, clearly.  And it seems like it's our

  9   responsibility to think more than just a couple years

 10   ahead.  And that's what this looks like.

 11             MR. JOSHI:  Thank you.

 12             MR. CANO:  I have received a comment card from

 13   Robert Van Peer.  Did you want to speak on this item?

 14             MR. VAN PEER:  Was the item in question we

 15   were just talking about something to do with the Orange

 16   Line?

 17             MR. CANO:  This is the pedestrian access

 18   between the Orange and Red Lines.

 19             MR. VAN PEER:  Yes.

 20             MR. CANO:  Okay.

 21             Mr. Joshi, thank you.

 22             MR. VAN PEER:  My biggest problem with the

 23   pedestrian passway that you have -- it's not a bad idea.

 24   In fact, I think it's needed.  The problem is, the way

 25   it's designed, the one segment that figures to have the
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  1   most crossings is omitted from the plan, and that would

  2   be the one from the Universal City bus station to the

  3   pick-up point where the tram goes to Universal Studios.

  4   That would be on the north -- let me see -- the

  5   northeast -- southeast and southwest corners.  That

  6   should be a direct system.

  7             MR. WEISSMAN:  They are putting in a bridge.

  8             MR. VAN PEER:  They are putting in a bridge

  9   there?  Okay.  I didn't see that in the earlier plans.

 10             MR. CANO:  This is for the Lankershim North

 11   Hollywood station.  What you are talking about is the

 12   Universal City station.

 13             MR. VAN PEER:  Yeah.

 14             MR. CANO:  This is the Lankershim North

 15   Hollywood station.

 16             MR. VAN PEER:  Well, I don't know exactly what

 17   your plans are because I haven't seen them.  It's

 18   basically you are putting a bridge across.  That's not a

 19   bad idea considering the way people rush across that

 20   street in order to catch the Orange Line.  An

 21   overarching bridge is probably a pretty good idea.

 22             MR. CANO:  Thank you, sir.  I appreciate it.

 23             Any other comments or questions on that item?

 24             I think we are going to have this item

 25   agendized.  We are going to have some more people here.
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  1   I don't think it's a bad idea for the Council to take a

  2   position at that point to at least alert the Metro Board

  3   that perhaps they need to reconsider if there's a

  4   technical way of providing egress and ingress by

  5   escalator.

  6             MR. HILLMER:  We could notify the Board via a

  7   Board box item.

  8             MR. CANO:  Yeah.  We fought for the second

  9   elevator for the access for disability.  And this is

 10   going to drive people onto the elevator or across the

 11   street like they are doing now, which is a safety

 12   problem, which negates the value of doing this in the

 13   first place.

 14             MR. BRIC:  Chairman?

 15             MR. CANO:  Yes.

 16             MR. BRIC:  I presume you are asking us to come

 17   back next month?

 18             MR. CANO:  At the next meeting.

 19             MR. BRIC:  I can't believe they are going to

 20   stop everything for 30 days or something like that.  I

 21   am sure there is preliminary work they can do.  We are

 22   not asking them to put it on hold for 30 days.

 23             MR. CANO:  No.  I don't think they would put

 24   it on hold.

 25             MR. BRIC:  No.  I know they wouldn't.  That's
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  1   all I'm saying.

  2             MR. CANO:  They have some other construction

  3   work they are doing.

  4             MR. HILLMER:  I'm sure -- I haven't seen it --

  5   but they have a construction schedule that they are

  6   bound by contract to abide to.

  7             If we are successful in having them add a

  8   second escalator, we are going to have to go through a

  9   different process, either a large change order for the

 10   construction.  It might delay the project a little bit

 11   as well.  But we'll come back next month with a little

 12   bit more information.

 13             MR. CANO:  Let us know by e-mail what work is

 14   going to be done between now and the next Board meeting

 15   so we know what is going to be done.  I appreciate that.

 16             MR. HILLMER:  Okay.  Thank you.

 17             MR. CANO:  Item No. 6, Receive Report on Line

 18   155 - Universal City/Studio City Station Construction

 19   Detour.

 20             MR. MARIN:  Good evening, Everyone.  So moving

 21   on to a different pedestrian crossing project at the

 22   Universal Station, our 155 Route is going to be on a

 23   long-term detour beginning August 24.  That's due to the

 24   construction of the pedestrian bridge over Lankershim

 25   from the Universal City/Studio City Station across
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  1   Lankershim to the west side.

  2             And the detour will be in one direction only.

  3   It's only going to be eastbound.  Our Line 155, which

  4   normally runs from Ventura and then north on Lankershim

  5   is now going to be making a left on Campo de Cahuenga

  6   Way, entering the transit center area, exiting, and then

  7   a left from Campo de Cahuenga to Lankershim Boulevard.

  8             The eastbound route will not be affected.

  9   That's going to stay in place.  And we are making bus --

 10   we are assigning bus bay number four as a new stop for

 11   all eastbound 155 patrons.

 12             Construction is expected to last approximately

 13   18 months; so we can -- beginning early 2016, we can

 14   begin to bring 155 back to normal.

 15             That's it.  If anyone has any questions, I can

 16   take those right now.

 17             MR. CANO:  Do you have question on that item?

 18             Okay.  You'll update us throughout, as needed,

 19   on issues that arise if this is -- this is going to be a

 20   long effort.

 21             MR. MARIN:  Of course.  Especially if any

 22   long-term issues arise.

 23             MR. CANO:  Okay.  We're going to be -- are we

 24   going to make announcements on the train or anything

 25   like that or any signage?
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  1             MR. MARIN:  We are going to be sending out

  2   Twitter alerts.  If you are subscribed to text message,

  3   you will be getting a message in a week or so.  And we

  4   have already disseminated take-ones on the 155 buses.

  5   We did that a little bit earlier this time.  But we'll

  6   be continuing until August 24.

  7             MR. CANO:  Okay.  Great.  Thank you very much.

  8   Appreciate it.

  9             Move on to Item No. 7, Fare Restructuring

 10   Implementation.  And I believe we have an item in our

 11   packet.

 12             MR. HILLMER:  Yes, we do.

 13             Thank you, Mr. Chair.  The presentation is

 14   actually -- the pop art is prepared by our Office of

 15   Management and Budget, who are the experts on this.

 16   They were unfortunately not available to be here

 17   tonight; so Team B is here today.

 18             MR. WEISSMAN:  They threw you to the wolves.

 19             MR. HILLMER:  I wouldn't call you the wolves

 20   yet.  I think maybe some of the vigor has been let out

 21   already.  We'll see.  Let's go through this fairly

 22   quickly.  This is a rather wordy presentation in terms

 23   of a PowerPoint.

 24             But in essence, the Metro Board did authorize

 25   the holding of a public hearing, which there was a very
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  1   vibrant public hearing held in March on a Saturday.

  2   Great attendance.  We had well over 120 people who spoke

  3   on that, and I believe the last person who spoke was

  4   Kymberleigh Richards, who gave her recommendations.

  5             The Metro Board, at their May meeting,

  6   approved most of staff's proposed fare changes with the

  7   exception of students.  K through 12, were frozen at

  8   their current rate, and that they directed that staff

  9   come back in the future with more information.

 10             We're also having APTA, which is the

 11   professional organization for public transit agencies,

 12   do a peer review, and we'll get into that in a little

 13   more detail.

 14             The fare increase is scheduled to go into

 15   effect on Monday, September 15th, which is coming up

 16   soon.

 17             Now, page three, a very detailed graph here of

 18   what the fare structure is.  You can see what the

 19   current pricing is in terms of the cash fare and the

 20   monthly fares and then the approved fares on the

 21   right-hand side.  In essence, everything has gone up

 22   somewhat with the exception of the student fares.

 23             The regular fare has gone up from $1.50 to

 24   $1.75, but there's a very key element added to this,

 25   which is that individuals who are paying with a
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  1   stored-value TAP card -- that's a TAP card, same you use

  2   for a monthly pass -- you can load cash value onto that

  3   at many locations, including our TVM machines.  You can

  4   put, for example, $100 on it, $50, $1.75.

  5             When you get on the bus or enter the train

  6   station, when you tap on the TAP machine, it will deduct

  7   $1.75 from your stored value.  From that moment, you

  8   have two hours in which to make free transfers to any

  9   other Metro bus or rail line, with the exception of not

 10   being able to get right back on the same line you

 11   started with consecutively.

 12             So if you were to get on the 761 out here, you

 13   TAP on that vehicle and go several blocks and get off to

 14   get a doughnut or something and you want to get on, it

 15   will not allow you to get back on the 761 for free.

 16   However, if you wait for the parallel service, the local

 17   Line 233, you can get on that and continue on your

 18   journey.

 19             And the reason for this is to not allow people

 20   to use this for round trips necessarily.  So people

 21   could not take their bus or train to where they want to

 22   go and come back in the same way.

 23             It's an inconvenience for some people, but I

 24   believe once people get used to it, they will richly

 25   enjoy this free transfer, to the point where I believe
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  1   that our day pass sales will come down substantially and

  2   our monthly passes may come down a bit.  But anyway,

  3   that is the best of the fare structures.

  4             Then we have a whole list of them.  I will not

  5   go through each and every one of them.  Monthly passes

  6   or the 30-day pass goes from 75 to $100.  Our transfers

  7   to munis goes from to .35 cents to .50 cents, and so

  8   forth, all the way down the line.

  9             On express fares, there's another key change.

 10   Currently, we have two zones, depending upon how far the

 11   express bus goes.  You can pay up to two zones.  We are

 12   now combining that into one single zone.  So every

 13   express bus will have the same express fare for the

 14   express ride.  If your express line provides local

 15   service on the street, you will not be charged an

 16   express fare if you only ride on the surface streets.

 17   San Fernando Valley is not impacted by that very much.

 18             Moving on to page four, this is another

 19   breakdown of our senior/disabled passes and fares.  You

 20   can see that during peak periods, which are from

 21   9:00 o'clock in the morning -- actually, from

 22   6:00 o'clock to 9:00 o'clock and then again in the peaks

 23   from 3:00 to 7:00 o'clock in the afternoon, I believe --

 24   I may be off a little bit on that time frame.  Anyway,

 25   there is a peak period charge.  It's going from .55
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  1   cents to .75 cents.

  2             During the off-peak, it's currently .25 cents.

  3   That's going up a dime to .35 cents.  The monthly pass

  4   will be going from $14 to $20.  And again, it goes all

  5   the way down the line in term of what the express fares

  6   are and the EZ Pass are.  If you have any questions on

  7   that, we can go back over those as we go along.

  8             MR. WEISSMAN:  Senior starts at what age?

  9             MR. HILLMER:  Seniors?  62.  Very young.

 10             MR. WEISSMAN:  Two years over.

 11             MR. HILLMER:  We've gone through this a little

 12   bit already in detail in terms of using the TAP card

 13   that has a load stored value.  You have two hours of

 14   transfers.

 15             Everybody that wants to take advantage of this

 16   can load up their stored value at a variety of

 17   locations, TVMs that are on the Orange Line and rail

 18   lines and other key locations such as major bus

 19   stations.  We also have vendors who will also load them

 20   up.  You can go online or telephone.  You can go to

 21   Metro headquarters and load up your TAP card.

 22             But you cannot load this up on the bus.  You

 23   cannot get on the bus with a TAP card and load $10, $15,

 24   $20 on it.  It needs to be preloaded before you get

 25   there.  And the reason for this, it takes a lot of time
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  1   to put cash in our farebox, and there's a concern about

  2   slowing the bus down for everybody.  So that is the

  3   requirement.  And I mentioned about the note.  No

  4   loading it on the bus, mind you, and no passbacks.

  5             MR. CANO:  Quick question, Jon.  I know load

  6   times is a big issue for the Orange Line, especially in

  7   terms of getting people on and off.  Do we have a strong

  8   amount of TAPs on the Orange Line, or is it a lot of

  9   cash fare?

 10             MR. HILLMER:  It's required to have a TAP card

 11   to get on the Orange Line because it's very much

 12   rail-like.  There's no farebox on the Orange Line buses.

 13   People can get on and off every door.  Everybody is

 14   supposed to have a TAP card.

 15             As we found out when the sheriff's department

 16   did a major review of the Orange Line, there was a good

 17   percentage of people who did not necessarily have a

 18   valid TAP card.

 19             Let's see.  Now going on to revenue impacts.

 20   We are projecting that the new fare structure will

 21   generate up to $28.6 million in additional revenue per

 22   year for the current structure.  And you can go through

 23   the definition of that.

 24             The fare structure was put together for us or

 25   the model was put together for us by a private firm,
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  1   TranSystems, which has done similar work for other

  2   transit properties and for Metro.  They have a very good

  3   track record; so we are fairly confident this will be a

  4   valid fare increase in terms of the 28.6 percent.

  5             In fact, there's a possibility that -- our

  6   Office of Management and Budget says that since this

  7   model was based on current ridership, that the two-hour

  8   transfer may attract many more riders who see the value

  9   of this cost-efficient way of using public

 10   transportation.  So there may be even more riders and

 11   more revenue as a result.

 12             Moving on to implementation.  It will be

 13   launched, as I said before, on Monday, September 15.  If

 14   you have purchased a 30-day pass prior to the 15th but

 15   in September, it's still good for 30 days.  Whatever you

 16   buy beforehand will still be valid, even though the fare

 17   structure has changed.

 18             Communications plan is being implemented as we

 19   speak.  There are posters, news releases, car cards on

 20   our buses on the Silver and Orange Line, a plethora of

 21   take-ones.  We have information on our web pages and so

 22   forth, Twitter accounts and whatnot.  And we have these

 23   very informative, lots-of-detail stickers that are going

 24   on our ticket vending machines as well as all of our

 25   fareboxes.
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  1             There are -- as part of our program, the Board

  2   has directed that Metro focus more on our Rider Relief

  3   Transportation Program.  That is, individuals who are

  4   below the poverty level will be eligible for subsidies

  5   for their passes.

  6             And this graph just indicates that, based upon

  7   the poverty guidelines, depending on the number of

  8   people you have in your family, if you are a single

  9   person, if you are earning $28,500 or less a month -- a

 10   year.  I wish that was a month -- a year, you are in

 11   poverty.  If you have six members in your family, then

 12   it's $47,300 in a year, and then you would be eligible

 13   for this program, which would be up to $10 discount on a

 14   pass, $6 discount on student, disabled, and senior

 15   passes.

 16             There is a marketing program.  This is all

 17   based upon what the Board has directed staff to do that

 18   would have significant outreach to various community

 19   public service agencies to actually try to maximize the

 20   number of people eligible to take advantage of this

 21   program.

 22             And let's see.  I think I'm at the end of

 23   this.  We have an active peer review, as I mentioned

 24   before.  They will take a look at Metro, see if there is

 25   some tweaking to future fare structures that would be
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  1   advantageous to us that would maximize revenue but at

  2   the same time minimize negative impact to low-income

  3   riders.

  4             They will look at alternative

  5   revenue-generating systems.  I'm not quite sure exactly

  6   what that means, maybe more enhanced advertising, rental

  7   space sales.  Anyway, and opportunities to expand our

  8   ridership.  They will come back to the Board in a year

  9   in July of 2015 with their recommendations.  And with

 10   that, that ends this presentation.

 11             MR. CANO:  Mr. Bric has questions.

 12             MR. BRIC:  Couple questions.  The weekly

 13   currently is 20, and the monthly 75.

 14             MR. HILLMER:  Let me get back to that page.

 15   Okay.

 16             MR. BRIC:  And you raised it 25 to 100.

 17             MR. HILLMER:  Yes.  75 to 100 for the 30-day

 18   pass.

 19             MR. BRIC:  Before, you were getting

 20   basically -- I know there are four and a third weeks in

 21   a month.  But the 20 and 75, technically would be $80.

 22   You are getting no savings on the 25 to 100.

 23             MR. HILLMER:  Right.

 24             MR. BRIC:  So I just wonder if they took that

 25   into consideration because why would somebody put out
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  1   $100 today when they can put out 25 for the next four

  2   weeks if money is tight?  That's all I'm saying.

  3             MR. HILLMER:  $25 for four weeks.

  4             MR. BRIC:  But I'm saying you are getting a

  5   break at the current price, which you don't.

  6             MR. HILLMER:  Right.

  7             MR. BRIC:  And then when we move down to the

  8   senior and disabled, on the regular fares, you have a

  9   weekly and a monthly, but you only have a monthly for

 10   the senior.  You don't have a weekly.  What would be the

 11   reasoning for that?

 12             MR. HILLMER:  Only that we have not had a

 13   weekly senior disabled pass.

 14             MR. BRIC:  You haven't had one in the past.

 15   Okay.

 16             And this probably -- one more question.

 17   Probably a stupid one.  It's for 30 days.  What do you

 18   do for a month that has 31 days?  How do you prorate it?

 19             MR. HILLMER:  Well, a 30-day pass allows

 20   individuals to purchase their pass irrespective of what

 21   the calendar says.

 22             MR. BRIC:  Right.  First of the month, 2nd of

 23   month.

 24             MR. HILLMER:  Right.  There's some controversy

 25   in terms of a 30-day pass.  If a person used a pass
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  1   every day, you'll end up, after a period -- I think it's

  2   five years.  It may be four years -- having to buy one

  3   additional 30-day pass.

  4             MR. BRIC:  I understand you can purchase it

  5   any day during the month.  But it's based on 30 days?

  6             MR. HILLMER:  Correct.

  7             MR. BRIC:  Thank you.

  8             MR. WEISSMAN:  Following up with Mr. Bric's

  9   statement, is that 30 days of use or 30 consecutive days

 10   that it is valid?

 11             MR. HILLMER:  Thirty consecutive days.  From

 12   the first time you TAP to use it, the clock starts for

 13   30 days.

 14             MR. WEISSMAN:  Okay.  My question that I want

 15   to focus on is you had made the comment that with the

 16   increase and the two-hour window that there would be

 17   fewer day passes purchased -- anticipated fewer day

 18   passes purchased because people are going to be able to

 19   take advantage of the two-hour window for their

 20   transfers and using.

 21             MR. HILLMER:  Correct.

 22             MR. WEISSMAN:  Do you know if there was any

 23   part of an analysis or study into the -- well, how much

 24   revenue is going to be lost?  I mean, this is a revenue

 25   -- these increases are to increase revenue and just get
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  1   more money.  How much revenue is going to be lost by

  2   people who pay 25 percent -- .25 cents more and have

  3   greater latitude of usage with their two-hour transfer

  4   window versus the $2 that Metro loses because they are

  5   not buying a day pass?

  6             MR. HILLMER:  I'm sure the analysis went

  7   stratified by fare type and so forth.  I don't know what

  8   those numbers specifically are, only that the analysis

  9   indicated that overall, there would be a $28 million

 10   increase in revenue on an annual basis.

 11             I believe there will be people who will vote

 12   basically based upon their pocketbook.  And if you have

 13   a day pass that is now going to be $7, you can use your

 14   two-hour free window two, maybe three times in a day.

 15             MR. CANO:  That's something I was in meetings

 16   with the staff who were doing all the modeling.  They

 17   had a big spreadsheet.  So this doesn't moot the gross

 18   revenues from the increase.

 19             MR. HILLMER:  Correct.

 20             MR. CANO:  It's not by huge margins, but it's

 21   a sizeable one.  And we ran the model where if you just

 22   did this new transfer deal without raising the fare at

 23   all, you would lose money.  It dropped a few percentage

 24   points.  They did factor it into the model.  I'm not

 25   sure the exact percentage, but it's not a 50 percentage
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  1   loss or anything.

  2             MR. HILLMER:  Yeah.  I'm sure we will lose

  3   some revenue in terms of day pass sales, but that's made

  4   up for in increases elsewhere, and including on the

  5   stored-value card.  If people decide they would rather

  6   have a stored value instead of buying a 30-day pass for

  7   $100, they may end up using more than $100 worth of

  8   rides in a given month, whereas most months they may

  9   save some money.  So there's a give and take in terms of

 10   the revenue generation.

 11             MR. CANO:  Mr. Bric again.

 12             MR. BRIC:  Just one more question.  I presume

 13   that -- you mentioned on September 15 this will be

 14   implemented.  If someone on September 14 bought a weekly

 15   or monthly, that would --

 16             MR. HILLMER:  It's still valid.  If they buy a

 17   30-day pass on the 14th, it's good for the 30 days.

 18             MR. BRIC:  It won't be prorated?

 19             MR. HILLMER:  It's honored.

 20             MR. BRIC:  Okay.  Thank you.

 21             MR. CANO:  Mr. Hillmer, I appreciate you

 22   stepping in for the budget people.  I know they went

 23   through the models and numbers.  Maybe they can come

 24   back at another time and provide information, if needed.

 25             I am interested in working with you to develop
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  1   for September an item to at least discuss these issues

  2   in the San Fernando Valley, how we are going to get the

  3   word out, what it is going to look like, example of the

  4   seat drops, examples of the communications.  Because I

  5   think that's -- one of our goals should be to do the

  6   local ground grass-roots effort here to at least help

  7   with that.  If you can work with me over the next month.

  8             MR. HILLMER:  Absolutely.

  9             MR. CANO:  I appreciate that.

 10             Any other questions on that?

 11             Let's move on to the Director's Report.  I'll

 12   ask Mr. Hillmer to keep it to highlights.

 13             MR. HILLMER:  We'll run through this fairly

 14   quickly.  Again, dealing with the standard that I used

 15   before -- I'm going to change this next month -- but

 16   we're looking at a trend line of the last three months,

 17   which would be April, May, and June of 2014.  In

 18   addition, we are looking back one year to April, May,

 19   and June of 2013.  We look at trend line near term and

 20   also the trend line from a year ago.

 21             Systemwide, on-time performance has been

 22   improving, up to 78.4 percent on-time performance.  Our

 23   goal is 80 percent.  We are a little short of that.

 24   San Fernando Valley has actually been relatively flat,

 25   although we had a very good April in terms of on-time
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  1   performance, nearly 79 percent on time.  San Fernando

  2   Valley has the best on-time performance, though you can

  3   see that other regions such as the Gateway Cities and

  4   also, very surprisingly, the West Side Central on-time

  5   performance has moved up very smartly.

  6             On-time performance systemwide, our trends

  7   have been a very gradual improvement in on-time

  8   performance.  Running late for June 2014, we had

  9   16.9 percent of the trips that were running late.

 10   "Late" is determined as something that is five minutes

 11   or more behind schedule.  That is the second-best rate

 12   we have had as far back as I have data, which goes back

 13   to 2005.

 14             Running ahead of schedule -- and "ahead of

 15   schedule" is defined as one minute or more ahead of

 16   schedule for this type of report -- is at 4.7 percent.

 17   And that's the area that we are focusing in on driving

 18   that number down to as close to zero as possible.

 19             Customer complaints -- as we go through here,

 20   you'll see that the San Fernando Valley has some of the

 21   best indicators of quality service.  But also, we tend

 22   to have a higher complaint rate, although San Fernando

 23   Valley/Gateway Cities has jumped into the lead on this

 24   unenviable performance measure.  But San Fernando

 25   Valley's complaint rate is up a little bit from last
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  1   year.

  2             One of the key indicators for our complaint

  3   numbers going up and down, however, is not the service

  4   on the street but how many telephone information

  5   operators are on staff any given month.  More people on

  6   duty, lower the dwell time, wait time to get heard.

  7   That has been a key indicator.  It's something we need

  8   to move into less reliance on telephones and more

  9   reliance on Internet and maybe even Twitter.

 10             We do have a form online that people can fill

 11   out with all the information and detail that's needed.

 12   We need to market that far more heavily than we do.

 13             Moving on, page four, mechanical liability.

 14   We have -- our goal is 4,000 miles between a mechanical

 15   road call.  San Fernando Valley always does very well

 16   here, well over our goal.  But we have the South Bay and

 17   San Gabriel Valley who jumped up.

 18             We typically have between 220 and 280 -- no.

 19   Take that back.  We have 1,200 mechanical road calls in

 20   a given month.  So this is something we really need to

 21   work on, to drive these numbers up even farther.

 22             So moving on again, quickly, cleanliness

 23   rating.  Our goal is nine out of ten.  Ten is a

 24   perfectly brand-new bus.  San Fernando Valley is at 8.8.

 25   That is the best number there.  Systemwide, almost 8.6.
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  1   You can see that for the San Fernando Valley, it's

  2   coming down just a tad, but still among the cleanest

  3   fleets in the system.

  4             In terms of traffic accidents, our goal is 3.1

  5   accidents per 100,000 miles.  Systemwide, 3.6.  San

  6   Fernando Valley, way down there at 2.84.

  7             I have a little bit of detail.  I won't dwell

  8   on it very long.  When we have traffic accidents, we

  9   have 50 different codes we use to clarify what type of

 10   accident we have.  30 percent of the accidents -- let me

 11   back up.

 12             Almost 30 percent, 29 percent of the

 13   accidents, are caused by two types.  One is a bus

 14   standing in a bus zone being hit by a car.  And the

 15   other one is a bus in a traffic lane being sideswiped by

 16   another vehicle.  So most of those accidents are caused

 17   by other people.

 18             However, the third most common accident,

 19   11 percent, is a bus striking a fixed object.  It's

 20   pretty hard to explain why that fixed object got in your

 21   way.  But that's the third most common accident we have.

 22   Just a little bit of detail.

 23             In terms of bus station cleanliness, our goal

 24   here is 8.5.  Systemwide, just a tad above 8.  San

 25   Fernando Valley came down just a little bit from the
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  1   last few months at 7.92.  Partly, it's because when I

  2   get out to some of the stations, it may be before they

  3   are due to be cleaned.  Most of these stations are

  4   cleaned several times during any given day.

  5             Getting close to the end here.  Ridership came

  6   down from the previous year, down about 4 percent.  It

  7   went from 1.1 million to 1.06 million.  San Fernando

  8   Valley came down to 188,000 in ridership.

  9             And I won't dwell on the next several.  San

 10   Fernando Valley, in terms of the Orange Line, ridership

 11   there came down to 25,000 on an average weekday.

 12   Sometimes the June ridership for the Orange Line is very

 13   dependent upon students.  So part of that, that early

 14   dismissal for summer took place.

 15             The next couple slides is just the long-term

 16   trend line for bus ridership.  You can see that bus

 17   ridership came down quite a bit in the 2006 era, all the

 18   way to 2009, 2010.  From there, it's been very flat on

 19   an average weekday.  Even though the June number is down

 20   a bit, it's still within the normal fluctuation range.

 21   It's been relatively flat.

 22             Rail ridership has been moving up, moving up,

 23   moving up until we get to about the beginning of this

 24   current calendar year.  And then I believe when we had

 25   gating on the Gold Line, gating more on the Red Line and
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  1   so forth, we drove some of that ridership down.  It's

  2   starting to come back again.  People are coming back.

  3   Hopefully, they are paying their fare.

  4             Put those all together, and it's still a

  5   relatively flat ridership for rail.  Still very vibrant

  6   at 1.4 million average boardings a day on bus and rail

  7   for Metro.

  8             Highlights, we have gone through these before.

  9   The 788 Line could go into effect as early as October,

 10   although I think I'm pushing now to push that off to

 11   December so we can actually market it better.  If we did

 12   this in late September, early October, you wouldn't have

 13   much time to actually get a lot of the word out.  But

 14   we'll keep you posted next month, and maybe -- give you

 15   an update on that and get your feedback as well.

 16             Fares are going into effect on the 15th, not

 17   the 14th.

 18             Planning staff studying conversion of Orange

 19   Line to rail.  We talked about that a little bit.  We'll

 20   come back next month, if desired, with more detail on

 21   that.  That's a big, big program.

 22             Also looking at BRT service on Vermont -- Bus

 23   Rapid Transit on Vermont -- and also a way to connect

 24   the Bob Hope Airport, the Orange Line, and the Gold Line

 25   via Burbank and Glendale.  Good things will be coming
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  1   from that.  And we'll come back to the Council here with

  2   a status report on that as well.

  3             And then we have begun to receive our new

  4   light rail cars.  They are up in Palmdale right now.

  5   That is where the assembly of these cars made in Japan

  6   will take place.

  7             With that, I'm sorry for the slightly

  8   elongated presentation, but it's over.

  9             MR. CANO:  For the highlights, thank you.

 10             Any questions on this information here?

 11             Okay.  Thank you, Mr. Hillmer.

 12             Before we conclude with Item No. 9, I did omit

 13   to bring up Mr. Nate Zablen on Item No. 6.  If you want

 14   to take your time now, please do.  And then we'll move

 15   on to Item No. 9.

 16             MR. ZABLEN:  Thank you, and good evening.  I

 17   had a little concern about the pedestrian bridge over on

 18   Lankershim connecting the station, Universal City

 19   Station to City Walk.  I guess Metro is spending quite a

 20   bit of money on this bridge, and I think it's probably a

 21   done deal.

 22             But unfortunately, I think the people that

 23   will really benefit from it will not be Metro customers

 24   but people who are parking in the Metro parking lot who

 25   are not Metro customers who continue to park there on
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  1   the weekends, even though there are signs.  And a lot of

  2   them will probably be using that pedestrian bridge.  And

  3   other people who, let's say, may park in the Metro lots

  4   that are used for the Hollywood Bowl shuttle and other

  5   people who will use it.

  6             Basically, it's an enhancement for the area,

  7   but it's not particularly beneficial to Metro customers.

  8   I mean, some Metro customers will use it.  Basically,

  9   it's for the community.  It's for people who are going

 10   to City Walk, Universal Studios.

 11             So I think at the same time, there should

 12   be -- as you are spending money on this bridge, there

 13   should be an enhancement of the bus plaza at Universal

 14   City, which is not really well designed.

 15             For example, if you take the Red Line to

 16   Universal City and you get out, usually you have to wait

 17   20 minutes for a bus connection.  In the afternoon,

 18   there's no shade because that bus plaza where you are

 19   waiting faces the sun.  So I think it's -- at the same

 20   time that Metro is committing money to this pedestrian

 21   bridge that will probably help some Metro customers,

 22   they can't ignore improvements on the Metro bus plaza.

 23             That was designed maybe 20 years ago, 15 years

 24   ago.  And generally, the buses don't meet you when you

 25   come out of the subway because the buses get delayed and
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  1   the drivers have to take a break.  It's almost

  2   impossible to synchronize the departure of those Rapid

  3   or Metro buses with the passengers getting off the

  4   subway.

  5             It's a very brutal wait there because there's

  6   no shade and very little shelter.  So I think the

  7   pedestrian bridge is fine, but they need to do something

  8   to make it better for Metro customers, all Metro

  9   customers.  Thank you.

 10             MR. CANO:  Thank you.  Noted.  Thank you very

 11   much.

 12             Chair and Council Member Comments, I'll start

 13   with Mr. Washburn and work our way around.

 14             MR. WASHBURN:  I have none.

 15             MR. CANO:  Mr. Bric?

 16             MR. BRIC:  None.

 17             MR. CANO:  Vice chair?

 18             MR. WEISSMAN:  Pass.

 19             MR. CANO:  I'll pass as well.

 20             Thank you very much.  So we will adjourn this

 21   meeting, the Council meeting.

 22             And we'll adjourn to the public hearing on

 23   December 2014 proposed service changes and call that to

 24   order.

 25             Just for the record, is Mr. Marin filling in
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  1   for Mr. Page?

  2             MR. HILLMER:  Yes.

  3             MR. CANO:  Okay.  I would like to welcome

  4   everyone here, and I apologize to the people who are

  5   here specifically for the public hearing.  We had to get

  6   through our business for the month, but we did want to

  7   give a chance to have your comment here.  There also

  8   will be a hearing on Saturday morning, I understand.

  9             What time, Mr. Hillmer?

 10             MR. HILLMER:  9:00 o'clock.

 11             MR. CANO:  At 9:00 o'clock down at the Metro

 12   building at One Gateway Plaza at Union Station.  So if

 13   someone you know was not able to appear here and can't

 14   get written comments in, maybe they can show up on

 15   Saturday to give comment there.  Or if you want to show

 16   up both times, we can't stop you.

 17             I want to welcome everyone here.  I did want

 18   to read in the statement here, and I'm going to ask that

 19   when everyone speaks, please speak into a microphone.

 20             We do have a court reporter.  We also have --

 21   we don't have equipment for translating, but we do have

 22   someone in the audience who will be able to translate

 23   into Spanish, if needed.

 24             Is that person here?

 25             MR. HILLMER:  Yes.
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  1             MR. CANO:  Do you want to come up and announce

  2   to the Spanish speakers?

  3             (Interpreter making an announcement in

  4             Spanish.)

  5             MR. CANO:  Thank you for that.  I'll now call

  6   this public hearing to order.  My name is Michael Cano.

  7   I'm the Chair of Metro's San Fernando Valley Service

  8   Council, and I will serve as the presiding officer for

  9   this public hearing.  I thank everyone for taking the

 10   time to be here this evening.  I'll ask fellow Service

 11   Council members to introduce themselves for the record.

 12             MR. WASHBURN:  I'm Dennis Washburn, Las

 13   Virgenes/Malibu Council of Governments representative.

 14             MR. BRIC:  Gary Bric, City of Burbank,

 15   councilman.

 16             MR. OCHOA:  Jesus Ochoa.

 17             MR. WEISSMAN:  Donald Weissman, City of Los

 18   Angeles.

 19             MR. CANO:  Thank you very much.

 20             Also with us here tonight are several Metro

 21   staff.  They include Jon Hillmer, Director of Metro's

 22   Service Councils and Executive Officer of Operations;

 23   Mr. Israel Marin, from Service Development;

 24   Transportation Operations Manager Gary Spivack.  And is

 25   Maria here as well?  No.  Okay.  And Service Councils
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  1   Analyst Dolores Ramos; and Community Relations Managers

  2   Lilian De Loza and Henry Gonzalez.

  3             Thank you all for being here.  Appreciate it.

  4             This Council is responsible for reviewing

  5   proposed bus service changes for the San Fernando Valley

  6   region and determining if changes should be approved,

  7   modified, or denied.  This evening, the Council will

  8   receive public comment on service changes proposed for

  9   implementation in December 2014 or later, if approved.

 10             The Service Council and Metro staff are here

 11   this evening to listen to your comments regarding the

 12   proposed service changes listed in the public hearing

 13   notice.  Copies of the take-one brochure which lists all

 14   of the Metro bus lines proposed for modification in all

 15   five Service Council regions are available at the

 16   sign-in table over there with Henry.

 17             Please note that no decision will be made

 18   today.  The purpose of this hearing is only to obtain

 19   public comments on the proposed service changes.  All of

 20   the comments submitted this evening, at the other public

 21   hearings, and by mail, phone, and e-mail, et cetera,

 22   will be transcribed and become part of the public

 23   record.

 24             All comments will be summarized and responded

 25   to in the final staff report, which will be submitted at
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  1   the Wednesday, September 3, 2014, San Fernando Valley

  2   Service Council Meeting.  The report will contain final

  3   staff recommendations for each bus line change under

  4   consideration here this evening.  The staff will also

  5   present their evaluation of the impacts the service

  6   changes will have relative to Title VI of the 1964 Civil

  7   Rights Act and Environmental Justice Executive Order.

  8   The Council will consider the comments received and

  9   information contained in the staff report to help the

 10   Service Council make a decision.

 11             Now I would like to invite Service Council

 12   Analyst Dolores Ramos to read in the Metro Board of

 13   Director Secretary Report.

 14             MS. RAMOS:  The notice of intent to hold this

 15   public hearing was published in the following

 16   publications:  Armenian Media Network, Crescenta Valley

 17   Weekly, The Daily Breeze, Daily News Los Angeles,

 18   Eastside Sun, the Korea Times, Los Angeles Sentinel, La

 19   Opinion, Panorama Russian Newspaper, Rafu Shimpo

 20   Japanese Paper, San Fernando Sun, Siamtownus, Southwest

 21   Wave, Watts Times, and World Journal Chinese Daily News.

 22   The notice was also posted on the Internet and

 23   distributed via take-one brochures aboard Metro buses

 24   and trains.

 25             Affidavits of publication are filed with the
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  1   Metro Secretary and are available in the Secretary's

  2   Office for review.

  3             This concludes my report.

  4             MR. CANO:  Thank you, Dolores.

  5             Service Development Manager Stand-In, Israel

  6   Marin -- what is your official title?

  7             MR. MARIN:  I'm still working on that myself.

  8   I guess we can go for "Metro staff" for now.

  9             MR. CANO:  Supreme overlord of Service

 10   Development?

 11             MR. MARIN:  Yes.

 12             MR. CANO:  Mr. Israel Marin will now detail

 13   the proposed service changes, focusing on changes

 14   proposed within the San Fernando Valley, after which the

 15   public comment portion of this hearing will begin.

 16   Persons who have asked to testify this evening will be

 17   called in the order in which they turned in a "Request

 18   to Speak" form.

 19             Some of you had some question marks about

 20   which item.  You are all speaking on Item 4.  So I will

 21   call you up -- even if you put Item 3, I will call you

 22   up at Item No. 4.

 23             If anyone here has not already done so and

 24   wishes to comment on the proposed changes, please fill

 25   out a form.  Mr. Henry over there has one.  So you get
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  1   that from him, and just submit it so we can call you up

  2   for the record.

  3             Each person providing comments tonight will be

  4   limited to two minutes; so pack in your comments into

  5   that time frame, please.

  6             Mr. Marin, I will now call you up.

  7             MR. MARIN:  Thank you, and good evening.  As

  8   we mentioned, Mr. Page will not be here tonight; so I

  9   will be presenting on the changes on -- proposed changes

 10   on Line 91.

 11             The first map I'd like to show shows the

 12   current service we have in the Montrose area.  There is

 13   only two -- basically two major differences between

 14   Lines 90 and 91, and the first one is in the Montrose

 15   area.

 16             Line 91 takes a little bit of -- or has a

 17   slightly different route.  It services Honolulu and La

 18   Crescenta and a portion of Foothill not served by Line

 19   90.  And then they meet up again north of Pennsylvania

 20   and Foothill.  And anything south of Honolulu on Verdugo

 21   is essentially the same.

 22             The other major difference is that Line 91 is

 23   essentially the smaller version, a shorter version of

 24   Line 90.

 25             As the map shows, because of the difference in
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  1   routes, we have -- we currently have 30 to 60 minutes on

  2   the two different segments.  And 15 to 30 minutes

  3   combined frequencies on the rest of the route where the

  4   Lines 90 and 91 are combined.

  5             And I just wanted to point out that the

  6   lighter blue line, that's Beeline service for Beeline 3.

  7             So the issue is that -- if I go back one of

  8   the slides, the issue is actually -- the reason why we

  9   are all here presenting Line 91 for public hearing is

 10   there is a difficult right turn from Ocean View

 11   Boulevard to Honolulu Avenue.  The street is at a

 12   sharper-than-90-degree angle, which makes it very

 13   difficult for our buses, whether they be 40- or 45-foot

 14   buses to complete their right turn without having

 15   issues.

 16             We currently -- we have had a few accidents in

 17   the past, and division management has been very

 18   concerned for this for a while now.  The -- currently,

 19   if all buses, if they want to make a right turn, there's

 20   a designated right-turn pocket.  Buses -- there's not a

 21   single bus using the right-turn pocket to complete their

 22   right turn.  They basically have to wait for all traffic

 23   to clear on Ocean View and take a portion of the through

 24   lane and turn right onto Honolulu.

 25             And even with opening up the turn to complete
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  1   that turn, it still gets a little bit more difficult if

  2   there's traffic on Honolulu.  And usually buses start to

  3   become -- get very, very close about the third car

  4   behind the limit line.  In the past, we have had some

  5   incidents where buses lightly tapping other vehicles.

  6   And oftentimes, what you'll see the most is biting the

  7   curb here.

  8             And following the last meeting, last time we

  9   were here, we did talk to the City about possibly

 10   removing this bulb out, and their answer was basically

 11   no, that that wasn't an option due to the design and

 12   amenities that they would have to relocate and the

 13   general design of the street.

 14             So we have come to the -- we have come to the

 15   Service Council to present two options.  We will call

 16   one Option A and the other one Option B.

 17             Option A basically -- by the way, this only

 18   affects our Line 91 in the northbound direction.  Option

 19   B basically continues northbound on Verdugo to Montrose

 20   Avenue, similar to what Line 90 does today.  And

 21   everything north of La Crescenta and Montrose, it

 22   continues with what Line 91 does normally.

 23             We are not proposing to change the frequency

 24   of any of the service or the amount of service or the

 25   span of service on any of the proposed -- on any of the
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  1   proposals.  This is strictly for a difficult turning

  2   movement.

  3             And I will be showing the ridership on

  4   Honolulu in the next slide or two to give you guys an

  5   idea of the ridership in the area.

  6             The proposed Option B is basically to have the

  7   same route for Lines 90 and 91.  So essentially, having

  8   just one route pass through the Montrose area that would

  9   be creating only one route through Montrose Avenue.  So

 10   from Verdugo through Montrose Avenue, and then

 11   Pennsylvania to Foothill, which is exactly what our Line

 12   90 does today.

 13             And again, as I mentioned, this also doesn't

 14   affect the frequency of service or the span of service

 15   in any way.  And patrons on the Montrose segment of

 16   Pennsylvania who are -- usually have their service cut

 17   in half or, you know, share their amount of service with

 18   the rest of the segment will now see a more standard

 19   type of service there in that area.

 20             And just I do -- since the last meeting we had

 21   here, we did speak with the Crescenta Valley Town

 22   Council and the Montrose Parks -- the Montrose Shopping

 23   Park Association.  And we had a -- we have had long

 24   discussions with them as well as city officials that

 25   were present, and they expressed their concerns.  And we
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  1   will be noting their concerns as part of the revised

  2   report back to the Council in September.

  3             The current map shows the ridership on the

  4   entire area that we are proposing that will be affected.

  5             MR. HILLMER:  What is boarding and alighting?

  6             MR. MARIN:  Boardings are on the right.  And

  7   it may be difficult to see.  There's a slash on the

  8   left.  On the left, you have the boardings.  On the

  9   right, you have the alightings.  And we do them by

 10   direction.  So depending how you look at the map, the

 11   right side would be northbound.  The left side would be

 12   southbound.

 13             There would be approximately 84 people that

 14   would be affected on Honolulu.  If additional people --

 15   I'm sorry -- 84 people on Honolulu and approximately 90

 16   people additionally if we were to streamline service

 17   including the 90 and 91, if we make that into one

 18   continuous line.

 19             MR. CANO:  Israel, before you leave there, I'd

 20   like to point out that that third of a mile is not flat.

 21   It's a steep grade up Ocean View and the different

 22   streets.

 23             MR. MARIN:  Duly noted.  It's definitely not

 24   flat.

 25             MR. CANO:  It's not something that someone in
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  1   a wheelchair could propel themselves up.  It's not like

  2   here.

  3             MR. MARIN:  Correct.

  4             With that said, of course the reason we are

  5   here is to take public comment, and we will -- I will

  6   take public comment now.

  7             MR. CANO:  Thank you, Mr. Marin.  I appreciate

  8   it.

  9             I will now open the hearing for public

 10   comments.  Again, you may comment on basically just this

 11   line.  If you have general comments about other service

 12   in other parts of the region, please hold that for

 13   another time.  We are focused only on this specific

 14   change that has been proposed that we are getting input

 15   on.  Please limit your comments to this line.

 16             And any comments received on this line will be

 17   kept as part of the record.  And if you have comments on

 18   other lines, usually we have other lines offered, we

 19   would keep that too.  But today, we have just this line

 20   here.

 21             Again, if there's anyone that still has not

 22   filled out a card, I have quite a few here.  Please

 23   limit yourself to two minutes.  And if you do not want

 24   to provide oral testimony, if you want to provide

 25   written testimony, again, you can provide written
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  1   comments by mail or e-mail that will still count as much

  2   as this.

  3             I'll call the first person up and the person

  4   following.  The first person is Kim Kelley of the

  5   Montrose Shopping Park Association, followed by Gigi

  6   Garcia.  Kim Kelley, please.  And then Garcia.

  7             MS. KELLEY:  I'm Kim Kelley.  I am a business

  8   owner in Montrose for the last 21 years.  I'm also the

  9   secretary on the Montrose Shopping Park Board.  I don't

 10   have as much to say as they do; so I'll keep mine brief.

 11             As a business owner, we do need that exposure

 12   along Honolulu Avenue.  And that's the biggest concern

 13   we have.  We do have seniors that come into our shop.  I

 14   have a lot of different ages of people that shop with

 15   me.  And to lose that for seniors, for students, for

 16   employees of the shopping park, it's, you know -- we

 17   need to come to some sort of a solution with this.

 18             And we're feeling as if, from Montrose, that

 19   we're not getting a lot of support for this.  So my

 20   biggest thing is we don't want to lose that along

 21   Honolulu Avenue.  That being said, thank you.

 22             MR. CANO:  Thank you very much.  Next up,

 23   Ms. Garcia.  And then following will be Bill Weisman

 24   from the City of Glendale.

 25             MS. GARCIA:  Hi.  Thank you for hearing us
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  1   tonight.  My name is Gigi Garcia.  I'm the vice

  2   president of Montrose Shopping Park Association.  I

  3   represent 180 small businesses in the area.  I'm also a

  4   resident and a small business owner myself.

  5             Removing the 91 from Honolulu would be

  6   detrimental to small businesses, employees, residents,

  7   students, seniors that live in the area and have no

  8   other means of transportation.

  9             The Montrose Shopping Park is prepared to give

 10   and has suggested several alternative routes to make

 11   this route safe and secure its future on Honolulu.

 12             Please do not remove public transit from a

 13   business district and reroute to a residential area that

 14   is now proposed or remove it altogether.  The Montrose

 15   Shopping Park is adamantly opposed to this, and so am I

 16   as a business owner and a resident.

 17             Thank you all for your consideration on this

 18   matter.

 19             I would also like to say we were unaware of

 20   the proposal that was made to cut that corner, the

 21   Shopping Park Association was.  Not to say that we can

 22   do it without support from the City, but we are willing

 23   to work with you all.

 24             It has been proposed for to us give away six

 25   of our parking spots right on the corner of Verdugo and
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  1   Honolulu.  And right now, we do not want to give up

  2   parking.  There is so little parking in that area, if

  3   you are familiar with it, to begin with that that would

  4   probably be one of our last options.  But we do want to

  5   secure its future.

  6             Thank you so much.

  7             MR. CANO:  Thank you for your comments.

  8             Next up is Bill Weisman from the City of

  9   Glendale, followed by Robbyn Battles, the president of

 10   CV Town Council.

 11             MR. WEISMAN:  Good evening, Service Council

 12   Members, Staff, and Public.  My name is Bill Weisman,

 13   only one S.  Not related, as far as I know, to your vice

 14   chair.  I want to clarify that I'm speaking tonight as a

 15   private citizen.  Although I do not represent the City

 16   of Glendale, I did serve five years as a transportation

 17   and parking commissioner for the City, and I currently

 18   serve as vice chair of the Metro Citizens Advisory

 19   Council.

 20             I have to say I'm well aware of the unsafe

 21   turn situation that currently exists at the intersection

 22   of Ocean View and Honolulu.  I spent a lot of time on

 23   that intersection.  I have observed many near-accidents.

 24   I have observed the great skill that the bus drivers

 25   have to display to make it through there safely.  And I
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  1   have seen occasions where the buses have had to wait for

  2   a long time for traffic to clear or the tires have

  3   ridden up on the corridor where the bulb out is.

  4             There are two main issues regarding the

  5   service change that I would like to emphasize.  The

  6   first one is that we really need -- and I also live in

  7   the area.  So I'm fairly -- often I'm driving on the

  8   streets and observe the conditions.

  9             We really need to continue bus service on La

 10   Crescenta Avenue, especially for our local students.  So

 11   I would recommend against Option B for that reason.

 12             And really as a long-term solution, we need

 13   Metro bus service going to the heart of the Montrose

 14   Shopping Park.  The reason is Montrose is Glendale's --

 15   the Montrose area there along Honolulu is Glendale's

 16   official Old Town.  And after the Americana at Brand and

 17   the Glendale Galleria, the Montrose Shopping Park is the

 18   third largest source of sales tax revenue for the City

 19   of Glendale.

 20             For that reason, we think it is really

 21   important to maintain service into the shopping park.  A

 22   short-term diversion onto Florencita might be possible.

 23   But the long-term solution, we need the bus in the

 24   shopping park.  Thank you.

 25             MR. CANO:  Thank you very much.  Appreciate
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  1   it.

  2             Next up, Robbyn Battles.  Welcome.

  3             MS. BATTLES:  Good evening.  My name is Robbyn

  4   Battles, and I am the president of Crescenta Valley Town

  5   Council.

  6             And if I could have you look at this map for a

  7   moment because if you're not familiar with our

  8   community, we are partially the City of Glendale, and we

  9   are partially the unincorporated area of L.A. County,

 10   which is the area that I represent.

 11             If you look at this line just north of the

 12   Montrose Shopping Park, that big kind of yellowed-out

 13   area is our high school.  And just above that is -- next

 14   to it is the elementary school.

 15             So cutting this line was one of the options,

 16   and I'm going to say to you you need to take that off

 17   the table.  You cannot eliminate this line.

 18             The next thing I would ask of you is

 19   wholeheartedly we're trying to work out a solution that

 20   complements saving La Crescenta and saving our Montrose

 21   Shopping Park.  In order to do that, we have so many

 22   different County and City entities involved, we would

 23   ask you to table this decision for some time because

 24   there has not been enough discussion between the

 25   Shopping Park, the County, and the City of Glendale.
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  1             I have also -- Michael, you should have the

  2   letter tomorrow -- sent you a letter that outlines some

  3   of the options we would like to see.  But I would like

  4   to see this whole process slow down.

  5             We understand Ocean View is a dangerous turn.

  6   We have given you a temporary alternative if you feel

  7   you need to move it immediately.  But we need to get it

  8   back to the Shopping Park, and we need to keep it along

  9   La Crescenta.  It's our only line that goes up La

 10   Crescenta and out Foothill.

 11             Thank you very much.

 12             MR. CANO:  Thank you.  Appreciate it very

 13   much.

 14             Robert Sandoval and then Ms. Kathryn Engel,

 15   former Service Council member.

 16             MR. SANDOVAL:  Hi.  I'm Robert Sandoval.  I'm

 17   a longtime Metro utilizer, if you will.  I recently got

 18   back from the Carlsbad area utilizing the Red Line,

 19   Amtrak, and their local BREEZE.  I did that for a year

 20   successfully through our public transportation, if you

 21   will.

 22             My issue today is with the general system

 23   here -- it's not broken, but when I utilize it to go on

 24   interviews as I have done the past couple months in

 25   Irwindale.  Metro ends here, and some other system
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  1   starts there.  And I have been late for one interview.

  2   I don't know if that was part of the reason I didn't get

  3   it.  But the second interview, I made sure I was there

  4   on time.

  5             So if you can on your website or your

  6   information that you distribute to the public include a

  7   mile or five or three or whatever to the next system,

  8   the next county, the next system, if you will, that

  9   would be quite useful.

 10             Second point, I utilize the website for your

 11   next bus function.  It will say five minutes.  I will be

 12   out there -- or nine minutes, and I'll be out there in

 13   seven or six, maybe push eight.  But bam, it's gone two

 14   minutes ago.  So there's like a five-minute, six-,

 15   seven-minute leeway window.  Can you get it more

 16   accurate?  Can you make it track better?

 17             I don't know how your system is.  I'm an

 18   electronic engineer and technician.  Maybe I can fix it,

 19   but that's not the point.  I'm sure you have smart

 20   people that can make it a little more accurate.

 21             Thirdly, when a driver leaves, sometimes they

 22   don't say anything.  They just take off.  People in

 23   other public transportation say, "All aboard,"

 24   "Leaving," something, bark something out, honk the horn,

 25   but don't just take off.  A lot of us are going to jobs
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  1   or doctors or whatever.  So can you make that a standard

  2   rule or look into it, talk about it?  Let's make it more

  3   efficient.

  4             MR. CANO:  Thank you.  We'll take those

  5   comments under advisement.  Thank you.

  6             Kathryn Engel, welcome back.

  7             MS. ENGEL:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

  8             MR. CANO:  And following will be Andre

  9   Ordubegian.

 10             MS. ENGEL:  Good evening, Mr. Chair and

 11   Members of the Council.  I am Kathryn Engel, transit

 12   manager for the City of Glendale.  I want to compliment

 13   Metro staff and our community members, Montrose Shopping

 14   Park Association, and the CV Town Council for coming

 15   together and having a lot of discussions about what our

 16   options are.

 17             I think everyone recognizes that we have a

 18   safety issue at the current intersection of Ocean View

 19   and Honolulu.  And I know there's an interest in trying

 20   to make some decisions fairly quickly.

 21             But as Ms. Battles indicated earlier, there

 22   are a number of sometimes competing interests, parking

 23   versus buses, merchants versus people trying to get

 24   through traffic, how the buses actually maneuver with

 25   40- and 45-feet buses on a street that was designed for



Hines Reporters 67

  1   20- and 30-foot buses back in the day.

  2             We have a lot of energy and have had a lot of

  3   really good discussions looking at options.  Staff has

  4   been around with members of the Shopping Park Board and

  5   the CV Town Council members walking the street, looking

  6   at options, looking at what aesthetics we might be

  7   willing to give up for operational needs.

  8             But because it's so complicated and like we

  9   said, there are so many different entities involved in

 10   the process, it's going to take us more time to really

 11   resolve and have a long-term solution.

 12             So I think we might recognize there are some

 13   short-term things that may need to be done on looking at

 14   the safety issues.  But long term, I think there is an

 15   interest in providing decent service to the Shopping

 16   Park but making it also safe for the people using the

 17   buses and also accommodate the needs of the Shopping

 18   Park for people coming to shop in that area.

 19             The city doesn't, from the transit piece,

 20   doesn't support Option B.  We really think distributing

 21   the service between the whole area is probably better

 22   off and complements what the line is doing currently.

 23             Again, long term, I think we take a look at it

 24   every once in a while and say, "Does this still make

 25   sense?"
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  1             MR. CANO:  Quick question for you and

  2   Ms. Battles.  How much time do you think you do need to

  3   go through and weigh the options and come to some

  4   consensus?  A couple months?

  5             I'm understanding if we don't act in

  6   September, because that's where the December shake-up

  7   is, then obviously we probably have another six months

  8   to act on this.

  9             MR. HILLMER:  Depending on how large the

 10   modification is, we might wait until the following June.

 11   Or if it's relatively small, we could do it sometime in

 12   between.

 13             MR. CANO:  Obviously, I mean, how much time do

 14   you need?  But -- what do you envision?

 15             MS. BATTLES:  Well, I would, just for business

 16   reasons, I would like to see them get through the

 17   holidays and keep that service because I think with -- I

 18   mean, just -- they only meet once a month.  So, I mean,

 19   we lose a month without thinking about it.  So I would

 20   say if we could come back to you, say, in January,

 21   February, that would really give us plenty of time

 22   because we have to go to the City, go back to the

 23   County.  There are so many entities.  We would really

 24   need January, February.

 25             MR. CANO:  That's good to know.  Let me take
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  1   the rest of the comments, and then -- thank you,

  2   Ms. Engel.  Appreciate it.

  3             Andre?

  4             MR. ORDUBEGIAN:  Good evening, ladies and

  5   gentlemen.  My name is Andre Ordubegian.  I'm the

  6   president of Montrose Shopping Park Association.

  7             I'm just here to tell you that the Metro line

  8   is very essential to our community, to all of our

  9   residents, merchants, people who visit our town,

 10   students, and everybody else.

 11             As far as the alternative options we have for

 12   the bus line, we already met with City officials as well

 13   as Metro people, and we are willing to do all sorts of

 14   alterations to the streets, to the parking we have, and

 15   to the stop places that we have for the buses that we

 16   understand they are kind of short and not adequate; so

 17   we even talked about enlarging those as well.

 18             Again, as everybody mentioned, if you can hold

 19   on to your decisions until we decide what we can do, and

 20   at that point, we can go forward.

 21             All of us are involved, and all of us are

 22   invested in this whole community.  So all the help we

 23   can get from you and the City of Glendale is greatly

 24   appreciated.  Thank you very much.

 25             MR. CANO:  Thank you for being here.
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  1   Appreciate it very much.

  2             Vince Garofalo.  I'm going to ask you to keep

  3   your comments on this specific -- Vince, I'm going to

  4   ask you to keep your comments specifically to this item,

  5   please.

  6             MR. GAROFALO:  I will.

  7             MR. CANO:  Thank you.

  8             MR. GAROFALO:  I just have a side comment, if

  9   you will, with regard to the issue of personal

 10   transparency.  The comments of Kymberleigh Richards were

 11   not addressed or mentioned other than said that they

 12   were said.  I would like to know what the individual

 13   said.

 14             Secondly, the Line 91 needs to be kicked

 15   upstairs for the sake of the people I see every night.

 16             MR. CANO:  Thank you.  Appreciate it.

 17             Last to speak, I have cards for Andrew Wang

 18   and Robert Van Peer.  If anyone else wishes to speak,

 19   you have a couple of minutes left.

 20             Mr. Wang.

 21             MR. WANG:  Hi.  I'm Andrew Wang.  Apparently,

 22   once again, I'm representing LACBC, which you probably

 23   all know what it is already.  Or do you need me to tell

 24   you what that is again?

 25             Regarding this line is like -- regarding that



Hines Reporters 71

  1   particular intersection that you guys were addressing

  2   safety issues on, perhaps what can also be looked into

  3   is to do an intersection study about that intersection

  4   where the service goes upon.  I'm just bringing that as

  5   a possible suggestion to that.

  6             Possibly do an intersection study and see if

  7   maybe there's any necessary modification of the

  8   intersection such as traffic signal modifications or

  9   traffic signal add-ons to make the intersection more

 10   safer, which is partly to say if that intersection

 11   happens to be permissive only turn intersection, perhaps

 12   possibly add on a protected left turn arrow traffic

 13   signal or maybe a protected permissive traffic signal.

 14             But the kind of signal I would think upon for

 15   that part of the intersection to refrain from putting on

 16   would be the ones without the red arrow will be the one

 17   to refrain from.  Probably also maybe sure ones that

 18   they put in the ones with the red arrows, if they want

 19   to add in a protective phasing, if it currently is only

 20   permissive.

 21             So actually what I'm talking about is that

 22   particular intersection where the service goes on that

 23   is where safety was addressed.  And I think that's

 24   pretty much it.

 25             MR. CANO:  Thank you very much for your time,



Hines Reporters 72

  1   Mr. Wang.

  2             Last to speak is Robert Van Peer.

  3             MR. VAN PEER:  That's me.  I would like, if I

  4   may -- may I make some comment?  I need to point to the

  5   map.

  6             MS. RAMOS:  We can get a pointer.

  7             MR. VAN PEER:  Very well.  I want to make sure

  8   I --

  9             MR. CANO:  Please address the microphone and

 10   we can take your comment on it.

 11             MR. VAN PEER:  That's the front.  Okay.  Now,

 12   am I correct in assuming that that line, not the one --

 13   the one going south and then going on Honolulu Avenue,

 14   that is the intersection in question; is that right?  I

 15   don't live in the area.

 16             MR. MARIN:  The intersection in question, if I

 17   could borrow this for a second.  It's Ocean View to

 18   Honolulu.

 19             MR. VAN PEER:  That's what I was asking.

 20   That's the intersection in question.  Now, the La

 21   Crescenta market area is the area along Robertson

 22   Avenue.  Am I correct?  Is that -- I believe that's what

 23   they were saying.  It's La Crescenta.

 24             MR. MARIN:  No.  It's the Montrose Shopping

 25   Park Association.
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  1             MR. VAN PEER:  Here is what I'm looking at,

  2   then.  What it seems to me is that the turn onto

  3   Florencita creates two turns that aren't necessary.  It

  4   would be a lot more efficient if you go straight from

  5   Verdugo onto Honolulu.  I think that would be the

  6   obvious and most efficient solution.

  7             MR. CANO:  Thank you for your time.

  8             We -- everyone, please, be quiet.  Thank you.

  9   Thank you for your comments.  That issue has been

 10   brought up.  Perhaps if you want to speak a couple

 11   seconds on that particularly?

 12             MR. HILLMER:  That was a route of this line

 13   for many, many, many years.  But when the intersection

 14   was reconfigured I believe about four or five years ago,

 15   it prevented a safe left-hand turn there; so that route

 16   was modified to its current configuration.

 17             MR. WEISSMAN:  Is there a difference in the

 18   size of the Beeline bus and the Metro bus?

 19             MR. HILLMER:  Yes.  Beeline buses are smaller.

 20   They are 32 feet.

 21             MR. CANO:  What is the headway for the Beeline

 22   on that route?

 23             MR. MARIN:  It's approximately 15 minutes.

 24             MS. ENGEL:  It's about 40 minutes.

 25             MR. MARIN:  It's 30 minutes.
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  1             MS. ENGEL:  And then it cycles through in 40

  2   minutes.

  3             MR. CANO:  This concludes the public comment

  4   portion of the public hearing.  I open the floor now to

  5   any Council members who have any comments they would

  6   like to make at this time.

  7             Mr. Washburn.

  8             MR. WASHBURN:  If someone would walk me back

  9   through back on the primary map here where we see Ocean

 10   View and Florencita and Honolulu.  Take the pointer and

 11   show me what the circulation looks like.  Walk me

 12   through it going southbound on Montrose, southbound from

 13   La Crescenta on Montrose.

 14             MR. MARIN:  Starting from southbound, you are

 15   coming down La Crescenta.  You make a left on Honolulu,

 16   and than a right turn on Verdugo Road.  Southbound is

 17   not the issue.

 18             MR. WASHBURN:  Right.

 19             MR. MARIN:  The issue is northbound.  You are

 20   coming northbound on Verdugo Road.  You are making a

 21   left turn on Florencita, a left turn on Ocean View

 22   Boulevard, and a right turn, which is the intersection

 23   in question.

 24             MR. WASHBURN:  That's where we have the bulb

 25   out and the trees and all the other issues?
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  1             MR. MARIN:  Exactly.  That is this right here.

  2             MR. WASHBURN:  It isn't clear to me.

  3             MR. CANO:  That's Ocean View.

  4             MR. WASHBURN:  This is Ocean View onto

  5   Honolulu?

  6             MR. MARIN:  This would be Ocean View, and this

  7   is Honolulu.

  8             MR. WASHBURN:  The street that precedes

  9   Honolulu where there is a white car coming out --

 10             AUDIENCE MEMBER:  Sorry to misspeak.  But

 11   that's the alley.

 12             MR. CANO:  You can see a stoplight farther up

 13   the street.  That's Florencita.

 14             MR. WASHBURN:  So there isn't another

 15   opportunity to get onto Honolulu other than through this

 16   entrance?

 17             MR. CANO:  Ocean View is pretty much the most

 18   major street, the first major street you hit.

 19             MR. HILLMER:  We are actually on Florencita on

 20   Sundays when there is a farmers market that takes place

 21   and closes down the street.  Florencita is a residential

 22   community.  We could operate there.  It is a safe place

 23   to operate a bus.  But it is a residential community.

 24   We are not sure they would be receptive to 40- and

 25   45-foot buses operating on their street seven days a
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  1   week.

  2             MR. WASHBURN:  And particularly farmers market

  3   day.

  4             MR. MARIN:  And also, we don't have any stops

  5   along that extension of Florencita which we run on

  6   Sundays.  Operators may drop patrons off to their

  7   discretion wherever they feel safe.  So we are still, in

  8   a sense, skipping or bypassing the Shopping Center on

  9   Honolulu.  However, this is only -- we can only do this

 10   on Sundays only.

 11             So residents are not used to Monday through

 12   Friday seeing a bus.  And it is medium-density

 13   residential.

 14             MR. WASHBURN:  Would you indulge me one more

 15   time and continue northbound on La Crescenta.  That is

 16   apparently serving the high school and the elementary

 17   school.  But La Crescenta itself is the vertical line we

 18   are looking at in the middle of this diagram; correct?

 19             MR. MARIN:  Right.

 20             MR. WASHBURN:  One of the alternatives is to

 21   propose a deletion of service on La Crescenta?

 22             MR. MARIN:  One of the alternatives is to

 23   completely eliminate service on La Crescenta, which is

 24   Option B.  And Option A is to resume service north of

 25   Montrose on La Crescenta.  So you would be missing this
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  1   segment, in a sense.

  2             MR. WASHBURN:  Thank you.  I didn't understand

  3   quite what was being added, even though I see A and B.

  4   It wasn't clear what the dynamics of the system are.

  5             MR. CANO:  Mr. Bric?

  6             MR. BRIC:  I want to thank the ten speakers

  7   that came before us.  And I understand the sensitivity

  8   of some of the businesspeople in that area and stuff

  9   like that.  I especially appreciate their comments about

 10   the holidays coming up and possibly tabling this for a

 11   little bit if it's at all possible for the merchants up

 12   there.  Being a small businessman myself, I know exactly

 13   where you folks are coming from.

 14             So I wouldn't have a problem after the public

 15   hearing if they waited on the decision.  This isn't a

 16   cut-off-the-arm type of thing.

 17             I understand the liability of the bus veering

 18   out a little bit to make that right-hand turn.  There

 19   are some safety issues there.  But hopefully they will

 20   weigh all that in their decision.

 21             MR. CANO:  Mr. Ochoa?

 22             MR. OCHOA:  No comment.

 23             MR. CANO:  Vice chair?

 24             MR. WEISSMAN:  Nothing further.

 25             MR. CANO:  I want to make some comments
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  1   personally.  This is my hometown.  I grew up on

  2   Prospect.  I took this bus.  I use it.  This is -- I

  3   understand very clearly the impacts here.

  4             I personally don't see how we can go with

  5   Option B.

  6             I think we definitely need to let the

  7   stakeholders that have come together continue to work

  8   this out.  I would like to at least keep the process

  9   going in September.  I think that's when you take

 10   official action, if that's what the will of the Council

 11   would be, to defer it or postpone it.

 12             I think I would like to give the Crescenta

 13   Valley Town Council and Montrose Business Association

 14   and the County and whoever else you need to get together

 15   to continue working on the problem.

 16             I would like the Metro staff to commit to

 17   continue being there.  I personally would be more than

 18   happy to come to any of these meetings to participate.

 19   I know this is very important, and I think we need a

 20   positive solution here.  Let's continue to work on that

 21   in the meantime.

 22             But in terms of tonight, this is just public

 23   input.  We have heard a lot of it, and we have heard a

 24   recurring theme as to what we need to be working on.

 25   With that --
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  1             MR. WASHBURN:  Chair, before you adjourn the

  2   meeting, can I ask another question?

  3             MR. CANO:  Sure.

  4             MR. WASHBURN:  There's obviously a need to try

  5   to minimize our liability or any potential negative

  6   consequences from the current circulation system and the

  7   impacts essentially on the bus and on -- the buses and

  8   on the space.

  9             Do we have the mechanisms to provide on a

 10   temporary basis white-glove help to be able to get

 11   folks, you know, to yield to the buses as they make the

 12   wide swing in order to make the right-hand turn onto

 13   Honolulu?

 14             If we need a nominal investment in traffic

 15   control, essentially, in order to ensure while we are

 16   studying the matter further that there isn't increased

 17   incidence opportunities.  You know, frankly, just asking

 18   Glendale police or Metro police or whoever to have the

 19   white-glove capability there for those times during the

 20   day when it is a critical issue.

 21             MR. CANO:  Probably be City of Glendale Police

 22   Force.

 23             MR. HILLMER:  Could be Glendale Police Force.

 24   It would be seven days a week for a spread of about 16

 25   to 18 hours a day.



Hines Reporters 80

  1             MR. WASHBURN:  Well, that's to do complete

  2   service, but there are peaks, I'm sure, where the

  3   traffic on Florencita -- or Ocean View, I'm sorry, are

  4   particularly unyielding to the needs of the bus as it

  5   makes its turns.  It might be rush hour or shopping

  6   hours like from 9:00 when the stores are open until 4:00

  7   or 5:00, something to that effect.

  8             But it would be an awful lot cheaper, it seems

  9   to me, to have somebody available to guide the traffic

 10   to allow the bus to move until we can make a better

 11   solution.

 12             MR. HILLMER:  We can approach the City of

 13   Glendale to see if they would be willing to do such a

 14   thing.

 15             MR. WASHBURN:  Could be the businesspeople

 16   also have ideas on how to obtain that temporary fix

 17   while we deal with the longer-term issues.

 18             MR. CANO:  Okay.  Fair point.  Thank you very

 19   much.

 20             With that, we will conclude, and we will

 21   adjourn this meeting.

 22             Thank you for everyone who came out tonight,

 23   and I appreciate your comments.

 24

 25             (The meeting was adjourned at 8:14 p.m.)
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 01      VAN NUYS, CALIFORNIA; WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 6, 2014

 02                         6:32 P.M.

 03  

 04            MR. CANO:  Good evening, Everybody.  Welcome

 05  to the San Fernando Valley Service Council.  We are

 06  going to have two items today -- the regular meeting and

 07  also the public hearing.  So I ask your patience, and

 08  we'll make sure everyone who wants to speak is heard.

 09            Let's start with the Pledge of Allegiance.

 10  I'll ask Mr. Washburn to lead us today.

 11            (Pledge of Allegiance.)

 12            MR. CANO:  Thank you.  I encourage anyone who

 13  has a cell phone that's going to be buzzing around to

 14  silence it.  I always forget mine.

 15            First item up for consideration is the minutes

 16  of the July 2nd, 2014, meeting.  And seeing that we had

 17  pretty much everyone here, that everyone participated in

 18  this, I'll take a motion on this if there are no

 19  questions or additions or revisions.

 20            MR. WASHBURN:  Approval.

 21            MR. CANO:  Motion to second.  Hearing no

 22  objection, such will be the order.  The minutes are

 23  approved.

 24            Item 3, the Chair's Remarks.  Let's make sure

 25  I don't have any comment cards here.  There is an item
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 01  -- some people asked to speak for Item 3, but that is

 02  for the public hearing.  Wait until then.

 03            Chair's Comments, I don't really have many,

 04  except I think it's going to be something this Council

 05  should start discussing a little more is now that the

 06  Orange Line is being realistically talked about as

 07  having a changed future in terms of rail conversion or

 08  upgrades or something.

 09            There was a motion that was approved by the

 10  Metro Board to begin the process.  Mr. Krekorian,

 11  Councilman Krekorian, led the effort.  And Supervisor

 12  Antonovich, Yaroslavsky joined with Mayor Garcetti, as

 13  did Director Fasana and Najarian to put forth that

 14  motion.

 15            The concept is basically how do we create a

 16  high-capacity transit corridor between the Orange Line

 17  Warner Center to Pasadena, what does that mean for the

 18  Orange Line, what does that mean from North Hollywood to

 19  the airport, from the airport to Pasadena.  This is

 20  something that's just beginning the input stage,

 21  beginning the studying stage.

 22            So I would invite this Council, if you want to

 23  have items in the future discussing it or just talking

 24  about what upgrades we need for the Orange Line if it

 25  doesn't get converted, I would be happy to have us
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 01  agendize that.  We'll keep it on our radar.

 02            Other than that, I don't have any other

 03  comments for this evening.

 04            MR. WASHBURN:  Michael, can I ask you a

 05  question on that?

 06            MR. CANO:  Please.

 07            MR. WASHBURN:  Was there any discussion of

 08  long-range transportation plan budgeting predictions or

 09  thought for the actual conversion itself?

 10            MR. CANO:  The actual conversion, given the

 11  current constraints in the long-range plan, probably

 12  would not be feasible financially.  It probably would be

 13  rolled into the large discussion of is there another

 14  measure that comes forward for transportation in 2016.

 15  And even that's not for certain, but it could be.

 16            So this is paving the ground for that

 17  discussion so that if there are projects that need to be

 18  included in the sales tax measure or some other measure,

 19  this will be an eligible one.  But as of now, we don't

 20  have any money.

 21            MR. WASHBURN:  Thanks.

 22            MR. CANO:  "Public comment for items not on

 23  the agenda," Item 4, I have several speakers here.  I'll

 24  give you two guesses as to who they are.  Vince Garofalo

 25  followed by Nate Zablen.
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 01            MR. GAROFALO:  Good evening.  On the last

 02  month, I spoke about the bus driver that passed me up.

 03  In all fairness, I wish to commend him with regard to

 04  his, I guess, sensitivity because he has not passed me

 05  up and even mentioned the Sunday after that that he, you

 06  know, didn't mean to do it.  So I wish to commend him

 07  with regard to that.

 08            In other matters, on the San Fernando

 09  Boulevard/Van Nuys Boulevard, there was some -- there

 10  were some constructions, and the stops were moved up.

 11  The construction has since been taken care of, and the

 12  stop is further closer to Van Nuys Boulevard, where an

 13  individual doesn't have to hike, you know, to catch the

 14  233 or the other one going down Van Nuys.

 15            The driver today on that bus said that they

 16  are not allowed to stop at that stop where there is, in

 17  fact, a legitimate stop.

 18            And the San Fernando/Ventura Boulevard stop,

 19  specifically on Sepulveda Boulevard that goes all the

 20  way to Sylmar, has got to be restored.  The hike over on

 21  the other side, the southwest, I guess, of Van Nuys to

 22  that bus stop is a chore.  I know people who have

 23  children who had to run to catch that bus.  So please

 24  take that under consideration.  Thank you.

 25            MR. CANO:  Okay.  Comments are noted.  Thank
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 01  you.

 02            Mr. Zablen, and then following will be Andrew

 03  Wang.

 04            MR. ZABLEN:  Good evening, Council Members.

 05  I'm Nate Zablen.  I'm on the Executive Board of the

 06  Southern California Transit Advocates.

 07            I was going to comment on some of the service

 08  changes, but unfortunately, there weren't a lot of

 09  enhancements to bus service in the Valley.  And I was

 10  disappointed and have been for a number of years.

 11            I think especially the north-south buses that

 12  run in this region that has about 2 million people,

 13  including Glendale and Burbank, and you offer kind of

 14  like a lifeline service where these north-south lines

 15  which connect with the Orange Line run basically once an

 16  hour and stop at 8:00 o'clock.

 17            I think as part of the enhancement of the

 18  Orange Line, you have to improve the connectivity.

 19  That's important.  One shouldn't have to wait an hour

 20  for a connecting bus if one is a long-time user of Metro

 21  and getting off at Woodman or Balboa because sometimes

 22  the connections -- you might miss your connection or

 23  something like that.  There might be a breakdown.

 24            So I wish that would be a priority because,

 25  you know, I heard they are talking about making the
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 01  Orange Line a light rail line.  But the important thing

 02  is to enhance the Orange Line, have better connectivity.

 03  Make it easier to use to reach that bus.

 04            And also somehow prioritize those signals

 05  because it does make a lot of stops.  And I know it is

 06  because of the Orange Line.  You have to be very

 07  careful.  But the red lights, especially in Tujunga,

 08  they really slow the Orange Line.

 09            So I think there should be more focus, not so

 10  much on the long-term change of the Orange Line to a

 11  light rail but on improving it for the 2 million-plus

 12  people.  And the Valley is very different from what it

 13  was.  It has increased in population.  They supported

 14  Measure R by a large margin.  And I don't know really if

 15  the people in the Valley are going to support the

 16  Measure R2 unless there are enhancements to bus service.

 17            And it shouldn't really cost that much.  I

 18  think you can modify some routes.  The important thing

 19  is to serve those areas where there is higher ridership.

 20  That's basically the Orange Line stops on streets like

 21  Woodman because the Valley has redeveloped over 10

 22  years.  It's not like it was in the '50s and '60s.  And

 23  these lines were started in the '50s.  And they need an

 24  improvement before you convert to Orange Line to a light

 25  rail.  Thank you.
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 01            MR. CANO:  Thank you.  And I'll use my

 02  discretion on this.  I did want to raise a couple

 03  things.  First one is I always drive Chandler on the way

 04  here just to kind of pace the bus, and I'm not buying

 05  L.A. DOT's comments that, "Well, it will just mess up

 06  traffic if we get some preemption."

 07            The bus stops for about 30-40 seconds at

 08  Colfax and Bellaire.  These are small streets compared

 09  to the Coldwaters and Lankershims.  So I'm not buying on

 10  the smaller streets that we can't do anything for that.

 11  And I know we have a new L.A. DOT general manager.  And

 12  I know there's been some discussion about maybe some

 13  flexibility.

 14            Maybe we can agendize that for a month or two,

 15  three, sometime, to bring that issue back.  Because I

 16  was counting at least two minutes of lost time with the

 17  bus waiting, not just for the traffic to move, but there

 18  are even green arrows that move traffic ahead of it.

 19  That doesn't make sense.

 20            MR. HILLMER:  We are, in fact, working on a

 21  program for long-term improvements for the Orange Line

 22  but also near-term improvements.  Mr. Spivack has put

 23  together a 16-page document that details some of the

 24  things that can be done both near term and far term.

 25  They do include working with the City in terms of
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 01  improving the signal priority and looking at those

 02  smaller cross streets where the Orange Line should get

 03  even more priority, maybe preemption.

 04            MR. CANO:  And the second thing -- I probably

 05  should have included this in my Chair Remarks, but this

 06  will suffice.  When we move to the fare increase, we

 07  also have the free transfer within the two-hour window.

 08  That's going to need a lot of outreach, and I know that

 09  Metro is preparing that.  But it's also going to allow

 10  us to reenvision how our service runs.

 11            You can maybe run more of a true grid system.

 12  Maybe you can create more efficiencies because transfers

 13  are going to be less of a deterrent because you'll take

 14  away the price penalty.  There will still be a time

 15  penalty, but the price penalty will go away for most of

 16  our riders.  So maybe we can also bring back whoever is

 17  doing that to start working on that.

 18            MR. HILLMER:  That will, in fact, enhance the

 19  opportunity for people to use -- to transfer users to

 20  higher speed, higher capacity systems such as the Orange

 21  Line, Red Line and our rail lines as well as our Rapid

 22  Bus Service.  With no price penalty for making a

 23  transfer, people will be more willing to take advantage

 24  of timesavers.

 25            MR. CANO:  That is my commentary.  I apologize
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 01  to Mr. Wang, who is next to speak.  Please.

 02            MR. WANG:  Good afternoon.  I'm Andrew Wang,

 03  and I stated that I'm representing LACBC, which is the

 04  Los Angeles County Bike Coalition, although what I have

 05  to say has nothing to do about that.

 06            But I did want to mention that regarding the

 07  thought of wanting to convert the Orange Line to a

 08  rail -- into a light rail, I have no problem about that,

 09  which is I have to say because that's something we could

 10  look into as well.

 11            And one other thing is actually -- that I did

 12  want to mention is regarding the fare increase.  I was

 13  thinking possibly you can look into a student fare

 14  option as well too when you do that increase, like a

 15  student fare discount option where students present like

 16  a valid vocational or college or whatever ID card that

 17  they can pay like a lesser fare like -- I mean, I'm

 18  talking about actually when the fare increase takes

 19  place.

 20            MR. WEISSMAN:  The student fare didn't

 21  increase.

 22            MR. WANG:  Well, so I was thinking -- well, I

 23  was thinking that possibly that's something that can

 24  possibly be looked into as well.  Maybe like when they

 25  do the fare increase, also consider a student fare as
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 01  well.

 02            MR. CANO:  Thank you for your comments.

 03  Appreciate them.

 04            That brings us to the conclusion of Item No. 4

 05  and brings us to Item No. 5, the update on the Red

 06  Line-Orange Line Pedestrian Tunnel.  Mr. Joshi.

 07            MR. JOSHI:  Good evening, Chair and Members of

 08  Council.  My name is Milind Joshi, and I'm the project

 09  manager at Metro for this underpass project.  I'll give

 10  you a brief summary that describes the nature of the

 11  project.

 12            This is the Red Line station, and this is the

 13  Orange Line terminus here.  There is a tremendous amount

 14  of pedestrian traffic between the two termination

 15  points -- the Red Line as well as the Orange Line.  And

 16  it causes safety concerns, major safety concerns.  At

 17  the same time, it causes traffic congestion on

 18  Lankershim Boulevard.

 19            This particular project will construct an

 20  underpass that will connect the Red Line station with

 21  the Orange Line.  The station is under this portion of

 22  Lankershim Boulevard.

 23            In this project, there is a wall at the north

 24  Chandler area that will be knocked out.  There is a

 25  panel.  And in this area, there will be a new entrance
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 01  that will connect both the station and the Orange Line

 02  by way of escalators and elevators.  There will be two

 03  elevators situated here and escalators.

 04            So the passengers, the commuters, can use the

 05  escalator and cross over.  There will be ticket vending

 06  machines here.  And then over here, they can get into

 07  the station.

 08            Now, there is also another -- this entrance

 09  will still be functional.  There will be a ticket

 10  vending machine here as well.  There essentially is two

 11  entry points for the patrons of public transits to come

 12  from the Orange Line or from the Red Line.

 13            The project is a design build nature of

 14  project.  And at this point, we are just about

 15  80 percent design work done.  And the construction

 16  activities are scheduled to begin sometime during next

 17  month.  And the overall project is supposed to be

 18  completed by spring of 2016.

 19            And Skanska is the contractor.  And Akin are

 20  the design partners.

 21            Any questions?

 22            MR. CANO:  I have some, but I'll hold until

 23  Mr. Washburn.

 24            MR. WASHBURN:  I would ask because I'm

 25  relatively new to the Council why this wasn't built in
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 01  the first place?  Because it's a welcomed change and

 02  addition.  It's vitally necessary, and I'm happy to see

 03  the progress on it.  I don't understand the history on

 04  it.  So maybe you might be able to share that with us?

 05            MR. JOSHI:  Unfortunately, I'm also not aware

 06  of the past history.  But definitely, this project was

 07  approved by the Board, and I said, "That's it.  It is

 08  approved.  We're working on it."

 09            MR. WASHBURN:  Can't be done soon enough.

 10            MR. CANO:  I have questions for you.  How many

 11  escalators and how many elevators and how much width is

 12  there on the stairs on that portal on the west side?

 13            MR. JOSHI:  The escalators, there will be two

 14  escalators.

 15            MR. CANO:  One up, one down?

 16            MR. JOSHI:  No.  One escalator that will take

 17  up to an intermediate level and then to the plaza level.

 18            MR. CANO:  So --

 19            MR. JOSHI:  So one escalator in that, from the

 20  perspective of what you are asking.  One escalator.  But

 21  it will be in two sections.

 22            MR. CANO:  So basically, the escalator will

 23  only be available for ingress or egress, but not both

 24  ways that we have usually?

 25            MR. JOSHI:  Yes.  Only to come up.
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 01            MR. CANO:  Why is that the case?  Because

 02  there will be a lot of traffic both ways.  It's not

 03  going to be one-way traffic.

 04            MR. JOSHI:  That's -- I will look into that.

 05            MR. CANO:  Is there room for another

 06  escalator?

 07            MR. JOSHI:  The room is about 20 feet of width

 08  available.

 09            MR. CANO:  I mean, I want to know is it a

 10  funding issue?  A design issue?

 11            MR. JOSHI:  I will have to find out the

 12  history of why it was selected the way it is.

 13            MR. CANO:  Because this Council actually

 14  helped push for a second elevator instead of one.  We're

 15  trying to get more disabled access to the station.  So

 16  that was helpful.

 17            But I'm concerned that, if it's just one

 18  escalator functional in one direction, what the impacts

 19  would be on the elevators because on our stations,

 20  usually we have the elevators are crowded with bikes,

 21  not just people with wheelchairs, but bikes and luggage.

 22  And the escalators take a lot of the burden.

 23            So if people are taking the elevator instead

 24  of the escalator, it's going to create a larger demand

 25  for that use space as opposed to what it's reserved for.
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 01  I'm concerned about that.

 02            MR. JOSHI:  I will check on that.  I will

 03  definitely make -- you know, at this point, I have not

 04  seen the escalator specifications; so I want to make

 05  sure what I answer, I give you, is accurate information.

 06  And as far as the elevator is concerned, there will be

 07  two.

 08            MR. WEISSMAN:  According to the schematic on

 09  the report, and I take it from your comments, you can

 10  get from the bus, take a down escalator, and walk across

 11  to the train, to the subway.  But you don't have the

 12  same convenience when you get off the subway and want to

 13  go to the bus.  There's no escalator up.

 14            MR. JOSHI:  That's what I will check.  That's

 15  what I will check to make sure that -- what is the

 16  project and what is the functionality of the escalator.

 17            MR. WEISSMAN:  It sure doesn't make sense to

 18  have it one way unless you want to trap everybody down

 19  there.

 20            MR. CANO:  Gary.

 21            MR. SPIVACK:  I participated in some of the

 22  design elements.  The reason we don't have two

 23  escalators is there's not enough room between the

 24  sidewalk and the box and then the pedestrian way that's

 25  available.  It is just a space issue.  It was one of the
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 01  reasons why we convinced them to add a second elevator.

 02  The escalator will be in the up position to bring people

 03  up from downstairs.  And the stairway will be used for

 04  people going downstairs, or they can use the elevators.

 05            MR. CANO:  Why wouldn't we have more --

 06  another escalator that will function as a staircase?

 07            MR. WEISSMAN:  That's completely inefficient.

 08            MR. SPIVACK:  It's not my desired outcome.

 09  Certainly Universal City is the same way.  We have up

 10  escalators but no down escalators.

 11            MR. WEISSMAN:  At Universal City, you have two

 12  different locations to enter the station.  One goes one

 13  way and the other goes the other way.  If you want to

 14  walk around, you can do that.  It does not make sense

 15  that you are taking such a population-laden area and

 16  limiting it to only one way when what you are trying to

 17  -- what you are creating is people are going to ignore

 18  this and cross the street because that's the quicker way

 19  out.

 20            They will take the escalator out.  They will

 21  go up the up.  They will turn left and run across the

 22  street to catch a bus, which is exactly what you are

 23  trying to avoid with people by building this underpass.

 24  It seems like it's a half-assed, one-way, halfway job

 25  and not complete at all.
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 01            MR. SPIVACK:  Mr. Weissman, I certainly agree

 02  with your sentiment.  As I said, it's not my desired

 03  outcome.

 04            MR. WEISSMAN:  I understand.  And I'm not

 05  harping at you, Gary.  You're just the messenger.  But

 06  whoever thought this through must have been asleep

 07  halfway through the idea.

 08            MR. SPIVACK:  I think next time we should get

 09  the company architect to come out because --

 10            MR. WEISSMAN:  Tell him to wear his armor.  I

 11  understand it could be budgetary in certain respects as

 12  well.  But to say, "This is the space we have to do, and

 13  this is what we are going to do," it's not thought

 14  through.  Maybe they should be tasked with going to the

 15  area and riding the subways for a week or two at a time

 16  and see the inconvenience that they are creating with

 17  the mass of people who use this area.

 18            MR. SPIVACK:  Understood.

 19            MR. CANO:  Well, when they come back, if they

 20  can answer the question about can you take some of the

 21  width of the staircase away to put in a second

 22  escalator, which would double as a staircase when it is

 23  stationary or broken down, that would add more

 24  flexibility to the system.

 25            MR. JOSHI:  All right.
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 01            MR. CANO:  So you started construction

 02  already?

 03            MR. JOSHI:  Yes.  We have done some

 04  preliminary work.  But the construction will begin

 05  sometime late this month or early next month.

 06            MR. CANO:  Agendize this for next month with

 07  the architect and the appropriate people.

 08            Thank you.

 09            MR. JOSHI:  Thanks.

 10            MR. CANO:  Any further questions on this item?

 11  Mr. Washburn.

 12            MR. WASHBURN:  It says project duration is

 13  approximately two years, and it tells you when it is

 14  going to start and stop.  Are we trying to meet some

 15  other deadline combination?  Or if we had another three

 16  months, might we be able to resolve these problems so

 17  that we don't do the half-baked job we are talking

 18  about?

 19            MR. JOSHI:  Well, essentially, if there is any

 20  significant change of this nature, first of all, we will

 21  have to evaluate if that is feasible or not technically

 22  and fiscally, and then we will have to change all the

 23  plans.  So this will basically be an extremely long

 24  delay, if not a couple of more additional years and

 25  added cost.  Because as I said, the design is about over
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 01  80 percent complete at this point, and construction --

 02            MR. WASHBURN:  It appears there is a lot of

 03  limiting variables here.  If there is 20-foot width --

 04  I'm looking at the schematics in this, and it shows that

 05  they are essentially side by side at opposed to stacked.

 06  If there is room enough to get from the lower level to

 07  mid level and then mid level to upper level, if

 08  Nordstrom can figure out a way to put two escalators in

 09  that same space, we should be able to do that, unless it

 10  is strictly a budgetary issue.  If it is budgetary, this

 11  is not, frankly, good budgeting management, it seems to

 12  me.

 13            MR. CANO:  I would add to that that if you

 14  would pose this to the Metro Board saying that you are

 15  about to do a program where you have one escalator at

 16  the busiest transfer station in the system, then I think

 17  they might reconsider the budget part.

 18            MR. WASHBURN:  I wonder if they are not aware.

 19            MR. CANO:  That's what I'm thinking.  I don't

 20  think they are quite aware of the limitations.

 21            MR. WASHBURN:  That's a different question,

 22  then.  Does a proposal like this get to the service

 23  councils as a means of testing the water?  Or is it, in

 24  fact, something that is voted and looked at by Board

 25  and/or Board staff?
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 01            MR. JOSHI:  Well, when I get the project for

 02  execution, it has gone through all the processes, I'm

 03  assuming or expecting.

 04            MR. WASHBURN:  Okay.  I think we're all

 05  curious to see what the original plan was, what the

 06  budget limitations are, and what it does to affect the

 07  timing because we're already at very high-capacity usage

 08  on the Orange Line, clearly.  And it seems like it's our

 09  responsibility to think more than just a couple years

 10  ahead.  And that's what this looks like.

 11            MR. JOSHI:  Thank you.

 12            MR. CANO:  I have received a comment card from

 13  Robert Van Peer.  Did you want to speak on this item?

 14            MR. VAN PEER:  Was the item in question we

 15  were just talking about something to do with the Orange

 16  Line?

 17            MR. CANO:  This is the pedestrian access

 18  between the Orange and Red Lines.

 19            MR. VAN PEER:  Yes.

 20            MR. CANO:  Okay.

 21            Mr. Joshi, thank you.

 22            MR. VAN PEER:  My biggest problem with the

 23  pedestrian passway that you have -- it's not a bad idea.

 24  In fact, I think it's needed.  The problem is, the way

 25  it's designed, the one segment that figures to have the
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 01  most crossings is omitted from the plan, and that would

 02  be the one from the Universal City bus station to the

 03  pick-up point where the tram goes to Universal Studios.

 04  That would be on the north -- let me see -- the

 05  northeast -- southeast and southwest corners.  That

 06  should be a direct system.

 07            MR. WEISSMAN:  They are putting in a bridge.

 08            MR. VAN PEER:  They are putting in a bridge

 09  there?  Okay.  I didn't see that in the earlier plans.

 10            MR. CANO:  This is for the Lankershim North

 11  Hollywood station.  What you are talking about is the

 12  Universal City station.

 13            MR. VAN PEER:  Yeah.

 14            MR. CANO:  This is the Lankershim North

 15  Hollywood station.

 16            MR. VAN PEER:  Well, I don't know exactly what

 17  your plans are because I haven't seen them.  It's

 18  basically you are putting a bridge across.  That's not a

 19  bad idea considering the way people rush across that

 20  street in order to catch the Orange Line.  An

 21  overarching bridge is probably a pretty good idea.

 22            MR. CANO:  Thank you, sir.  I appreciate it.

 23            Any other comments or questions on that item?

 24            I think we are going to have this item

 25  agendized.  We are going to have some more people here.
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 01  I don't think it's a bad idea for the Council to take a

 02  position at that point to at least alert the Metro Board

 03  that perhaps they need to reconsider if there's a

 04  technical way of providing egress and ingress by

 05  escalator.

 06            MR. HILLMER:  We could notify the Board via a

 07  Board box item.

 08            MR. CANO:  Yeah.  We fought for the second

 09  elevator for the access for disability.  And this is

 10  going to drive people onto the elevator or across the

 11  street like they are doing now, which is a safety

 12  problem, which negates the value of doing this in the

 13  first place.

 14            MR. BRIC:  Chairman?

 15            MR. CANO:  Yes.

 16            MR. BRIC:  I presume you are asking us to come

 17  back next month?

 18            MR. CANO:  At the next meeting.

 19            MR. BRIC:  I can't believe they are going to

 20  stop everything for 30 days or something like that.  I

 21  am sure there is preliminary work they can do.  We are

 22  not asking them to put it on hold for 30 days.

 23            MR. CANO:  No.  I don't think they would put

 24  it on hold.

 25            MR. BRIC:  No.  I know they wouldn't.  That's
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 01  all I'm saying.

 02            MR. CANO:  They have some other construction

 03  work they are doing.

 04            MR. HILLMER:  I'm sure -- I haven't seen it --

 05  but they have a construction schedule that they are

 06  bound by contract to abide to.

 07            If we are successful in having them add a

 08  second escalator, we are going to have to go through a

 09  different process, either a large change order for the

 10  construction.  It might delay the project a little bit

 11  as well.  But we'll come back next month with a little

 12  bit more information.

 13            MR. CANO:  Let us know by e-mail what work is

 14  going to be done between now and the next Board meeting

 15  so we know what is going to be done.  I appreciate that.

 16            MR. HILLMER:  Okay.  Thank you.

 17            MR. CANO:  Item No. 6, Receive Report on Line

 18  155 - Universal City/Studio City Station Construction

 19  Detour.

 20            MR. MARIN:  Good evening, Everyone.  So moving

 21  on to a different pedestrian crossing project at the

 22  Universal Station, our 155 Route is going to be on a

 23  long-term detour beginning August 24.  That's due to the

 24  construction of the pedestrian bridge over Lankershim

 25  from the Universal City/Studio City Station across
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 01  Lankershim to the west side.

 02            And the detour will be in one direction only.

 03  It's only going to be eastbound.  Our Line 155, which

 04  normally runs from Ventura and then north on Lankershim

 05  is now going to be making a left on Campo de Cahuenga

 06  Way, entering the transit center area, exiting, and then

 07  a left from Campo de Cahuenga to Lankershim Boulevard.

 08            The eastbound route will not be affected.

 09  That's going to stay in place.  And we are making bus --

 10  we are assigning bus bay number four as a new stop for

 11  all eastbound 155 patrons.

 12            Construction is expected to last approximately

 13  18 months; so we can -- beginning early 2016, we can

 14  begin to bring 155 back to normal.

 15            That's it.  If anyone has any questions, I can

 16  take those right now.

 17            MR. CANO:  Do you have question on that item?

 18            Okay.  You'll update us throughout, as needed,

 19  on issues that arise if this is -- this is going to be a

 20  long effort.

 21            MR. MARIN:  Of course.  Especially if any

 22  long-term issues arise.

 23            MR. CANO:  Okay.  We're going to be -- are we

 24  going to make announcements on the train or anything

 25  like that or any signage?
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 01            MR. MARIN:  We are going to be sending out

 02  Twitter alerts.  If you are subscribed to text message,

 03  you will be getting a message in a week or so.  And we

 04  have already disseminated take-ones on the 155 buses.

 05  We did that a little bit earlier this time.  But we'll

 06  be continuing until August 24.

 07            MR. CANO:  Okay.  Great.  Thank you very much.

 08  Appreciate it.

 09            Move on to Item No. 7, Fare Restructuring

 10  Implementation.  And I believe we have an item in our

 11  packet.

 12            MR. HILLMER:  Yes, we do.

 13            Thank you, Mr. Chair.  The presentation is

 14  actually -- the pop art is prepared by our Office of

 15  Management and Budget, who are the experts on this.

 16  They were unfortunately not available to be here

 17  tonight; so Team B is here today.

 18            MR. WEISSMAN:  They threw you to the wolves.

 19            MR. HILLMER:  I wouldn't call you the wolves

 20  yet.  I think maybe some of the vigor has been let out

 21  already.  We'll see.  Let's go through this fairly

 22  quickly.  This is a rather wordy presentation in terms

 23  of a PowerPoint.

 24            But in essence, the Metro Board did authorize

 25  the holding of a public hearing, which there was a very
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 01  vibrant public hearing held in March on a Saturday.

 02  Great attendance.  We had well over 120 people who spoke

 03  on that, and I believe the last person who spoke was

 04  Kymberleigh Richards, who gave her recommendations.

 05            The Metro Board, at their May meeting,

 06  approved most of staff's proposed fare changes with the

 07  exception of students.  K through 12, were frozen at

 08  their current rate, and that they directed that staff

 09  come back in the future with more information.

 10            We're also having APTA, which is the

 11  professional organization for public transit agencies,

 12  do a peer review, and we'll get into that in a little

 13  more detail.

 14            The fare increase is scheduled to go into

 15  effect on Monday, September 15th, which is coming up

 16  soon.

 17            Now, page three, a very detailed graph here of

 18  what the fare structure is.  You can see what the

 19  current pricing is in terms of the cash fare and the

 20  monthly fares and then the approved fares on the

 21  right-hand side.  In essence, everything has gone up

 22  somewhat with the exception of the student fares.

 23            The regular fare has gone up from $1.50 to

 24  $1.75, but there's a very key element added to this,

 25  which is that individuals who are paying with a
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 01  stored-value TAP card -- that's a TAP card, same you use

 02  for a monthly pass -- you can load cash value onto that

 03  at many locations, including our TVM machines.  You can

 04  put, for example, $100 on it, $50, $1.75.

 05            When you get on the bus or enter the train

 06  station, when you tap on the TAP machine, it will deduct

 07  $1.75 from your stored value.  From that moment, you

 08  have two hours in which to make free transfers to any

 09  other Metro bus or rail line, with the exception of not

 10  being able to get right back on the same line you

 11  started with consecutively.

 12            So if you were to get on the 761 out here, you

 13  TAP on that vehicle and go several blocks and get off to

 14  get a doughnut or something and you want to get on, it

 15  will not allow you to get back on the 761 for free.

 16  However, if you wait for the parallel service, the local

 17  Line 233, you can get on that and continue on your

 18  journey.

 19            And the reason for this is to not allow people

 20  to use this for round trips necessarily.  So people

 21  could not take their bus or train to where they want to

 22  go and come back in the same way.

 23            It's an inconvenience for some people, but I

 24  believe once people get used to it, they will richly

 25  enjoy this free transfer, to the point where I believe
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 01  that our day pass sales will come down substantially and

 02  our monthly passes may come down a bit.  But anyway,

 03  that is the best of the fare structures.

 04            Then we have a whole list of them.  I will not

 05  go through each and every one of them.  Monthly passes

 06  or the 30-day pass goes from 75 to $100.  Our transfers

 07  to munis goes from to .35 cents to .50 cents, and so

 08  forth, all the way down the line.

 09            On express fares, there's another key change.

 10  Currently, we have two zones, depending upon how far the

 11  express bus goes.  You can pay up to two zones.  We are

 12  now combining that into one single zone.  So every

 13  express bus will have the same express fare for the

 14  express ride.  If your express line provides local

 15  service on the street, you will not be charged an

 16  express fare if you only ride on the surface streets.

 17  San Fernando Valley is not impacted by that very much.

 18            Moving on to page four, this is another

 19  breakdown of our senior/disabled passes and fares.  You

 20  can see that during peak periods, which are from

 21  9:00 o'clock in the morning -- actually, from

 22  6:00 o'clock to 9:00 o'clock and then again in the peaks

 23  from 3:00 to 7:00 o'clock in the afternoon, I believe --

 24  I may be off a little bit on that time frame.  Anyway,

 25  there is a peak period charge.  It's going from .55
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 01  cents to .75 cents.

 02            During the off-peak, it's currently .25 cents.

 03  That's going up a dime to .35 cents.  The monthly pass

 04  will be going from $14 to $20.  And again, it goes all

 05  the way down the line in term of what the express fares

 06  are and the EZ Pass are.  If you have any questions on

 07  that, we can go back over those as we go along.

 08            MR. WEISSMAN:  Senior starts at what age?

 09            MR. HILLMER:  Seniors?  62.  Very young.

 10            MR. WEISSMAN:  Two years over.

 11            MR. HILLMER:  We've gone through this a little

 12  bit already in detail in terms of using the TAP card

 13  that has a load stored value.  You have two hours of

 14  transfers.

 15            Everybody that wants to take advantage of this

 16  can load up their stored value at a variety of

 17  locations, TVMs that are on the Orange Line and rail

 18  lines and other key locations such as major bus

 19  stations.  We also have vendors who will also load them

 20  up.  You can go online or telephone.  You can go to

 21  Metro headquarters and load up your TAP card.

 22            But you cannot load this up on the bus.  You

 23  cannot get on the bus with a TAP card and load $10, $15,

 24  $20 on it.  It needs to be preloaded before you get

 25  there.  And the reason for this, it takes a lot of time
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 01  to put cash in our farebox, and there's a concern about

 02  slowing the bus down for everybody.  So that is the

 03  requirement.  And I mentioned about the note.  No

 04  loading it on the bus, mind you, and no passbacks.

 05            MR. CANO:  Quick question, Jon.  I know load

 06  times is a big issue for the Orange Line, especially in

 07  terms of getting people on and off.  Do we have a strong

 08  amount of TAPs on the Orange Line, or is it a lot of

 09  cash fare?

 10            MR. HILLMER:  It's required to have a TAP card

 11  to get on the Orange Line because it's very much

 12  rail-like.  There's no farebox on the Orange Line buses.

 13  People can get on and off every door.  Everybody is

 14  supposed to have a TAP card.

 15            As we found out when the sheriff's department

 16  did a major review of the Orange Line, there was a good

 17  percentage of people who did not necessarily have a

 18  valid TAP card.

 19            Let's see.  Now going on to revenue impacts.

 20  We are projecting that the new fare structure will

 21  generate up to $28.6 million in additional revenue per

 22  year for the current structure.  And you can go through

 23  the definition of that.

 24            The fare structure was put together for us or

 25  the model was put together for us by a private firm,
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 01  TranSystems, which has done similar work for other

 02  transit properties and for Metro.  They have a very good

 03  track record; so we are fairly confident this will be a

 04  valid fare increase in terms of the 28.6 percent.

 05            In fact, there's a possibility that -- our

 06  Office of Management and Budget says that since this

 07  model was based on current ridership, that the two-hour

 08  transfer may attract many more riders who see the value

 09  of this cost-efficient way of using public

 10  transportation.  So there may be even more riders and

 11  more revenue as a result.

 12            Moving on to implementation.  It will be

 13  launched, as I said before, on Monday, September 15.  If

 14  you have purchased a 30-day pass prior to the 15th but

 15  in September, it's still good for 30 days.  Whatever you

 16  buy beforehand will still be valid, even though the fare

 17  structure has changed.

 18            Communications plan is being implemented as we

 19  speak.  There are posters, news releases, car cards on

 20  our buses on the Silver and Orange Line, a plethora of

 21  take-ones.  We have information on our web pages and so

 22  forth, Twitter accounts and whatnot.  And we have these

 23  very informative, lots-of-detail stickers that are going

 24  on our ticket vending machines as well as all of our

 25  fareboxes.
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 01            There are -- as part of our program, the Board

 02  has directed that Metro focus more on our Rider Relief

 03  Transportation Program.  That is, individuals who are

 04  below the poverty level will be eligible for subsidies

 05  for their passes.

 06            And this graph just indicates that, based upon

 07  the poverty guidelines, depending on the number of

 08  people you have in your family, if you are a single

 09  person, if you are earning $28,500 or less a month -- a

 10  year.  I wish that was a month -- a year, you are in

 11  poverty.  If you have six members in your family, then

 12  it's $47,300 in a year, and then you would be eligible

 13  for this program, which would be up to $10 discount on a

 14  pass, $6 discount on student, disabled, and senior

 15  passes.

 16            There is a marketing program.  This is all

 17  based upon what the Board has directed staff to do that

 18  would have significant outreach to various community

 19  public service agencies to actually try to maximize the

 20  number of people eligible to take advantage of this

 21  program.

 22            And let's see.  I think I'm at the end of

 23  this.  We have an active peer review, as I mentioned

 24  before.  They will take a look at Metro, see if there is

 25  some tweaking to future fare structures that would be
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 01  advantageous to us that would maximize revenue but at

 02  the same time minimize negative impact to low-income

 03  riders.

 04            They will look at alternative

 05  revenue-generating systems.  I'm not quite sure exactly

 06  what that means, maybe more enhanced advertising, rental

 07  space sales.  Anyway, and opportunities to expand our

 08  ridership.  They will come back to the Board in a year

 09  in July of 2015 with their recommendations.  And with

 10  that, that ends this presentation.

 11            MR. CANO:  Mr. Bric has questions.

 12            MR. BRIC:  Couple questions.  The weekly

 13  currently is 20, and the monthly 75.

 14            MR. HILLMER:  Let me get back to that page.

 15  Okay.

 16            MR. BRIC:  And you raised it 25 to 100.

 17            MR. HILLMER:  Yes.  75 to 100 for the 30-day

 18  pass.

 19            MR. BRIC:  Before, you were getting

 20  basically -- I know there are four and a third weeks in

 21  a month.  But the 20 and 75, technically would be $80.

 22  You are getting no savings on the 25 to 100.

 23            MR. HILLMER:  Right.

 24            MR. BRIC:  So I just wonder if they took that

 25  into consideration because why would somebody put out
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 01  $100 today when they can put out 25 for the next four

 02  weeks if money is tight?  That's all I'm saying.

 03            MR. HILLMER:  $25 for four weeks.

 04            MR. BRIC:  But I'm saying you are getting a

 05  break at the current price, which you don't.

 06            MR. HILLMER:  Right.

 07            MR. BRIC:  And then when we move down to the

 08  senior and disabled, on the regular fares, you have a

 09  weekly and a monthly, but you only have a monthly for

 10  the senior.  You don't have a weekly.  What would be the

 11  reasoning for that?

 12            MR. HILLMER:  Only that we have not had a

 13  weekly senior disabled pass.

 14            MR. BRIC:  You haven't had one in the past.

 15  Okay.

 16            And this probably -- one more question.

 17  Probably a stupid one.  It's for 30 days.  What do you

 18  do for a month that has 31 days?  How do you prorate it?

 19            MR. HILLMER:  Well, a 30-day pass allows

 20  individuals to purchase their pass irrespective of what

 21  the calendar says.

 22            MR. BRIC:  Right.  First of the month, 2nd of

 23  month.

 24            MR. HILLMER:  Right.  There's some controversy

 25  in terms of a 30-day pass.  If a person used a pass
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 01  every day, you'll end up, after a period -- I think it's

 02  five years.  It may be four years -- having to buy one

 03  additional 30-day pass.

 04            MR. BRIC:  I understand you can purchase it

 05  any day during the month.  But it's based on 30 days?

 06            MR. HILLMER:  Correct.

 07            MR. BRIC:  Thank you.

 08            MR. WEISSMAN:  Following up with Mr. Bric's

 09  statement, is that 30 days of use or 30 consecutive days

 10  that it is valid?

 11            MR. HILLMER:  Thirty consecutive days.  From

 12  the first time you TAP to use it, the clock starts for

 13  30 days.

 14            MR. WEISSMAN:  Okay.  My question that I want

 15  to focus on is you had made the comment that with the

 16  increase and the two-hour window that there would be

 17  fewer day passes purchased -- anticipated fewer day

 18  passes purchased because people are going to be able to

 19  take advantage of the two-hour window for their

 20  transfers and using.

 21            MR. HILLMER:  Correct.

 22            MR. WEISSMAN:  Do you know if there was any

 23  part of an analysis or study into the -- well, how much

 24  revenue is going to be lost?  I mean, this is a revenue

 25  -- these increases are to increase revenue and just get
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 01  more money.  How much revenue is going to be lost by

 02  people who pay 25 percent -- .25 cents more and have

 03  greater latitude of usage with their two-hour transfer

 04  window versus the $2 that Metro loses because they are

 05  not buying a day pass?

 06            MR. HILLMER:  I'm sure the analysis went

 07  stratified by fare type and so forth.  I don't know what

 08  those numbers specifically are, only that the analysis

 09  indicated that overall, there would be a $28 million

 10  increase in revenue on an annual basis.

 11            I believe there will be people who will vote

 12  basically based upon their pocketbook.  And if you have

 13  a day pass that is now going to be $7, you can use your

 14  two-hour free window two, maybe three times in a day.

 15            MR. CANO:  That's something I was in meetings

 16  with the staff who were doing all the modeling.  They

 17  had a big spreadsheet.  So this doesn't moot the gross

 18  revenues from the increase.

 19            MR. HILLMER:  Correct.

 20            MR. CANO:  It's not by huge margins, but it's

 21  a sizeable one.  And we ran the model where if you just

 22  did this new transfer deal without raising the fare at

 23  all, you would lose money.  It dropped a few percentage

 24  points.  They did factor it into the model.  I'm not

 25  sure the exact percentage, but it's not a 50 percentage
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 01  loss or anything.

 02            MR. HILLMER:  Yeah.  I'm sure we will lose

 03  some revenue in terms of day pass sales, but that's made

 04  up for in increases elsewhere, and including on the

 05  stored-value card.  If people decide they would rather

 06  have a stored value instead of buying a 30-day pass for

 07  $100, they may end up using more than $100 worth of

 08  rides in a given month, whereas most months they may

 09  save some money.  So there's a give and take in terms of

 10  the revenue generation.

 11            MR. CANO:  Mr. Bric again.

 12            MR. BRIC:  Just one more question.  I presume

 13  that -- you mentioned on September 15 this will be

 14  implemented.  If someone on September 14 bought a weekly

 15  or monthly, that would --

 16            MR. HILLMER:  It's still valid.  If they buy a

 17  30-day pass on the 14th, it's good for the 30 days.

 18            MR. BRIC:  It won't be prorated?

 19            MR. HILLMER:  It's honored.

 20            MR. BRIC:  Okay.  Thank you.

 21            MR. CANO:  Mr. Hillmer, I appreciate you

 22  stepping in for the budget people.  I know they went

 23  through the models and numbers.  Maybe they can come

 24  back at another time and provide information, if needed.

 25            I am interested in working with you to develop
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 01  for September an item to at least discuss these issues

 02  in the San Fernando Valley, how we are going to get the

 03  word out, what it is going to look like, example of the

 04  seat drops, examples of the communications.  Because I

 05  think that's -- one of our goals should be to do the

 06  local ground grass-roots effort here to at least help

 07  with that.  If you can work with me over the next month.

 08            MR. HILLMER:  Absolutely.

 09            MR. CANO:  I appreciate that.

 10            Any other questions on that?

 11            Let's move on to the Director's Report.  I'll

 12  ask Mr. Hillmer to keep it to highlights.

 13            MR. HILLMER:  We'll run through this fairly

 14  quickly.  Again, dealing with the standard that I used

 15  before -- I'm going to change this next month -- but

 16  we're looking at a trend line of the last three months,

 17  which would be April, May, and June of 2014.  In

 18  addition, we are looking back one year to April, May,

 19  and June of 2013.  We look at trend line near term and

 20  also the trend line from a year ago.

 21            Systemwide, on-time performance has been

 22  improving, up to 78.4 percent on-time performance.  Our

 23  goal is 80 percent.  We are a little short of that.

 24  San Fernando Valley has actually been relatively flat,

 25  although we had a very good April in terms of on-time
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 01  performance, nearly 79 percent on time.  San Fernando

 02  Valley has the best on-time performance, though you can

 03  see that other regions such as the Gateway Cities and

 04  also, very surprisingly, the West Side Central on-time

 05  performance has moved up very smartly.

 06            On-time performance systemwide, our trends

 07  have been a very gradual improvement in on-time

 08  performance.  Running late for June 2014, we had

 09  16.9 percent of the trips that were running late.

 10  "Late" is determined as something that is five minutes

 11  or more behind schedule.  That is the second-best rate

 12  we have had as far back as I have data, which goes back

 13  to 2005.

 14            Running ahead of schedule -- and "ahead of

 15  schedule" is defined as one minute or more ahead of

 16  schedule for this type of report -- is at 4.7 percent.

 17  And that's the area that we are focusing in on driving

 18  that number down to as close to zero as possible.

 19            Customer complaints -- as we go through here,

 20  you'll see that the San Fernando Valley has some of the

 21  best indicators of quality service.  But also, we tend

 22  to have a higher complaint rate, although San Fernando

 23  Valley/Gateway Cities has jumped into the lead on this

 24  unenviable performance measure.  But San Fernando

 25  Valley's complaint rate is up a little bit from last
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 01  year.

 02            One of the key indicators for our complaint

 03  numbers going up and down, however, is not the service

 04  on the street but how many telephone information

 05  operators are on staff any given month.  More people on

 06  duty, lower the dwell time, wait time to get heard.

 07  That has been a key indicator.  It's something we need

 08  to move into less reliance on telephones and more

 09  reliance on Internet and maybe even Twitter.

 10            We do have a form online that people can fill

 11  out with all the information and detail that's needed.

 12  We need to market that far more heavily than we do.

 13            Moving on, page four, mechanical liability.

 14  We have -- our goal is 4,000 miles between a mechanical

 15  road call.  San Fernando Valley always does very well

 16  here, well over our goal.  But we have the South Bay and

 17  San Gabriel Valley who jumped up.

 18            We typically have between 220 and 280 -- no.

 19  Take that back.  We have 1,200 mechanical road calls in

 20  a given month.  So this is something we really need to

 21  work on, to drive these numbers up even farther.

 22            So moving on again, quickly, cleanliness

 23  rating.  Our goal is nine out of ten.  Ten is a

 24  perfectly brand-new bus.  San Fernando Valley is at 8.8.

 25  That is the best number there.  Systemwide, almost 8.6.
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 01  You can see that for the San Fernando Valley, it's

 02  coming down just a tad, but still among the cleanest

 03  fleets in the system.

 04            In terms of traffic accidents, our goal is 3.1

 05  accidents per 100,000 miles.  Systemwide, 3.6.  San

 06  Fernando Valley, way down there at 2.84.

 07            I have a little bit of detail.  I won't dwell

 08  on it very long.  When we have traffic accidents, we

 09  have 50 different codes we use to clarify what type of

 10  accident we have.  30 percent of the accidents -- let me

 11  back up.

 12            Almost 30 percent, 29 percent of the

 13  accidents, are caused by two types.  One is a bus

 14  standing in a bus zone being hit by a car.  And the

 15  other one is a bus in a traffic lane being sideswiped by

 16  another vehicle.  So most of those accidents are caused

 17  by other people.

 18            However, the third most common accident,

 19  11 percent, is a bus striking a fixed object.  It's

 20  pretty hard to explain why that fixed object got in your

 21  way.  But that's the third most common accident we have.

 22  Just a little bit of detail.

 23            In terms of bus station cleanliness, our goal

 24  here is 8.5.  Systemwide, just a tad above 8.  San

 25  Fernando Valley came down just a little bit from the
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 01  last few months at 7.92.  Partly, it's because when I

 02  get out to some of the stations, it may be before they

 03  are due to be cleaned.  Most of these stations are

 04  cleaned several times during any given day.

 05            Getting close to the end here.  Ridership came

 06  down from the previous year, down about 4 percent.  It

 07  went from 1.1 million to 1.06 million.  San Fernando

 08  Valley came down to 188,000 in ridership.

 09            And I won't dwell on the next several.  San

 10  Fernando Valley, in terms of the Orange Line, ridership

 11  there came down to 25,000 on an average weekday.

 12  Sometimes the June ridership for the Orange Line is very

 13  dependent upon students.  So part of that, that early

 14  dismissal for summer took place.

 15            The next couple slides is just the long-term

 16  trend line for bus ridership.  You can see that bus

 17  ridership came down quite a bit in the 2006 era, all the

 18  way to 2009, 2010.  From there, it's been very flat on

 19  an average weekday.  Even though the June number is down

 20  a bit, it's still within the normal fluctuation range.

 21  It's been relatively flat.

 22            Rail ridership has been moving up, moving up,

 23  moving up until we get to about the beginning of this

 24  current calendar year.  And then I believe when we had

 25  gating on the Gold Line, gating more on the Red Line and

�0044

 01  so forth, we drove some of that ridership down.  It's

 02  starting to come back again.  People are coming back.

 03  Hopefully, they are paying their fare.

 04            Put those all together, and it's still a

 05  relatively flat ridership for rail.  Still very vibrant

 06  at 1.4 million average boardings a day on bus and rail

 07  for Metro.

 08            Highlights, we have gone through these before.

 09  The 788 Line could go into effect as early as October,

 10  although I think I'm pushing now to push that off to

 11  December so we can actually market it better.  If we did

 12  this in late September, early October, you wouldn't have

 13  much time to actually get a lot of the word out.  But

 14  we'll keep you posted next month, and maybe -- give you

 15  an update on that and get your feedback as well.

 16            Fares are going into effect on the 15th, not

 17  the 14th.

 18            Planning staff studying conversion of Orange

 19  Line to rail.  We talked about that a little bit.  We'll

 20  come back next month, if desired, with more detail on

 21  that.  That's a big, big program.

 22            Also looking at BRT service on Vermont -- Bus

 23  Rapid Transit on Vermont -- and also a way to connect

 24  the Bob Hope Airport, the Orange Line, and the Gold Line

 25  via Burbank and Glendale.  Good things will be coming
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 01  from that.  And we'll come back to the Council here with

 02  a status report on that as well.

 03            And then we have begun to receive our new

 04  light rail cars.  They are up in Palmdale right now.

 05  That is where the assembly of these cars made in Japan

 06  will take place.

 07            With that, I'm sorry for the slightly

 08  elongated presentation, but it's over.

 09            MR. CANO:  For the highlights, thank you.

 10            Any questions on this information here?

 11            Okay.  Thank you, Mr. Hillmer.

 12            Before we conclude with Item No. 9, I did omit

 13  to bring up Mr. Nate Zablen on Item No. 6.  If you want

 14  to take your time now, please do.  And then we'll move

 15  on to Item No. 9.

 16            MR. ZABLEN:  Thank you, and good evening.  I

 17  had a little concern about the pedestrian bridge over on

 18  Lankershim connecting the station, Universal City

 19  Station to City Walk.  I guess Metro is spending quite a

 20  bit of money on this bridge, and I think it's probably a

 21  done deal.

 22            But unfortunately, I think the people that

 23  will really benefit from it will not be Metro customers

 24  but people who are parking in the Metro parking lot who

 25  are not Metro customers who continue to park there on
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 01  the weekends, even though there are signs.  And a lot of

 02  them will probably be using that pedestrian bridge.  And

 03  other people who, let's say, may park in the Metro lots

 04  that are used for the Hollywood Bowl shuttle and other

 05  people who will use it.

 06            Basically, it's an enhancement for the area,

 07  but it's not particularly beneficial to Metro customers.

 08  I mean, some Metro customers will use it.  Basically,

 09  it's for the community.  It's for people who are going

 10  to City Walk, Universal Studios.

 11            So I think at the same time, there should

 12  be -- as you are spending money on this bridge, there

 13  should be an enhancement of the bus plaza at Universal

 14  City, which is not really well designed.

 15            For example, if you take the Red Line to

 16  Universal City and you get out, usually you have to wait

 17  20 minutes for a bus connection.  In the afternoon,

 18  there's no shade because that bus plaza where you are

 19  waiting faces the sun.  So I think it's -- at the same

 20  time that Metro is committing money to this pedestrian

 21  bridge that will probably help some Metro customers,

 22  they can't ignore improvements on the Metro bus plaza.

 23            That was designed maybe 20 years ago, 15 years

 24  ago.  And generally, the buses don't meet you when you

 25  come out of the subway because the buses get delayed and
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 01  the drivers have to take a break.  It's almost

 02  impossible to synchronize the departure of those Rapid

 03  or Metro buses with the passengers getting off the

 04  subway.

 05            It's a very brutal wait there because there's

 06  no shade and very little shelter.  So I think the

 07  pedestrian bridge is fine, but they need to do something

 08  to make it better for Metro customers, all Metro

 09  customers.  Thank you.

 10            MR. CANO:  Thank you.  Noted.  Thank you very

 11  much.

 12            Chair and Council Member Comments, I'll start

 13  with Mr. Washburn and work our way around.

 14            MR. WASHBURN:  I have none.

 15            MR. CANO:  Mr. Bric?

 16            MR. BRIC:  None.

 17            MR. CANO:  Vice chair?

 18            MR. WEISSMAN:  Pass.

 19            MR. CANO:  I'll pass as well.

 20            Thank you very much.  So we will adjourn this

 21  meeting, the Council meeting.

 22            And we'll adjourn to the public hearing on

 23  December 2014 proposed service changes and call that to

 24  order.

 25            Just for the record, is Mr. Marin filling in
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 01  for Mr. Page?

 02            MR. HILLMER:  Yes.

 03            MR. CANO:  Okay.  I would like to welcome

 04  everyone here, and I apologize to the people who are

 05  here specifically for the public hearing.  We had to get

 06  through our business for the month, but we did want to

 07  give a chance to have your comment here.  There also

 08  will be a hearing on Saturday morning, I understand.

 09            What time, Mr. Hillmer?

 10            MR. HILLMER:  9:00 o'clock.

 11            MR. CANO:  At 9:00 o'clock down at the Metro

 12  building at One Gateway Plaza at Union Station.  So if

 13  someone you know was not able to appear here and can't

 14  get written comments in, maybe they can show up on

 15  Saturday to give comment there.  Or if you want to show

 16  up both times, we can't stop you.

 17            I want to welcome everyone here.  I did want

 18  to read in the statement here, and I'm going to ask that

 19  when everyone speaks, please speak into a microphone.

 20            We do have a court reporter.  We also have --

 21  we don't have equipment for translating, but we do have

 22  someone in the audience who will be able to translate

 23  into Spanish, if needed.

 24            Is that person here?

 25            MR. HILLMER:  Yes.
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 01            MR. CANO:  Do you want to come up and announce

 02  to the Spanish speakers?

 03            (Interpreter making an announcement in

 04            Spanish.)

 05            MR. CANO:  Thank you for that.  I'll now call

 06  this public hearing to order.  My name is Michael Cano.

 07  I'm the Chair of Metro's San Fernando Valley Service

 08  Council, and I will serve as the presiding officer for

 09  this public hearing.  I thank everyone for taking the

 10  time to be here this evening.  I'll ask fellow Service

 11  Council members to introduce themselves for the record.

 12            MR. WASHBURN:  I'm Dennis Washburn, Las

 13  Virgenes/Malibu Council of Governments representative.

 14            MR. BRIC:  Gary Bric, City of Burbank,

 15  councilman.

 16            MR. OCHOA:  Jesus Ochoa.

 17            MR. WEISSMAN:  Donald Weissman, City of Los

 18  Angeles.

 19            MR. CANO:  Thank you very much.

 20            Also with us here tonight are several Metro

 21  staff.  They include Jon Hillmer, Director of Metro's

 22  Service Councils and Executive Officer of Operations;

 23  Mr. Israel Marin, from Service Development;

 24  Transportation Operations Manager Gary Spivack.  And is

 25  Maria here as well?  No.  Okay.  And Service Councils
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 01  Analyst Dolores Ramos; and Community Relations Managers

 02  Lilian De Loza and Henry Gonzalez.

 03            Thank you all for being here.  Appreciate it.

 04            This Council is responsible for reviewing

 05  proposed bus service changes for the San Fernando Valley

 06  region and determining if changes should be approved,

 07  modified, or denied.  This evening, the Council will

 08  receive public comment on service changes proposed for

 09  implementation in December 2014 or later, if approved.

 10            The Service Council and Metro staff are here

 11  this evening to listen to your comments regarding the

 12  proposed service changes listed in the public hearing

 13  notice.  Copies of the take-one brochure which lists all

 14  of the Metro bus lines proposed for modification in all

 15  five Service Council regions are available at the

 16  sign-in table over there with Henry.

 17            Please note that no decision will be made

 18  today.  The purpose of this hearing is only to obtain

 19  public comments on the proposed service changes.  All of

 20  the comments submitted this evening, at the other public

 21  hearings, and by mail, phone, and e-mail, et cetera,

 22  will be transcribed and become part of the public

 23  record.

 24            All comments will be summarized and responded

 25  to in the final staff report, which will be submitted at
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 01  the Wednesday, September 3, 2014, San Fernando Valley

 02  Service Council Meeting.  The report will contain final

 03  staff recommendations for each bus line change under

 04  consideration here this evening.  The staff will also

 05  present their evaluation of the impacts the service

 06  changes will have relative to Title VI of the 1964 Civil

 07  Rights Act and Environmental Justice Executive Order.

 08  The Council will consider the comments received and

 09  information contained in the staff report to help the

 10  Service Council make a decision.

 11            Now I would like to invite Service Council

 12  Analyst Dolores Ramos to read in the Metro Board of

 13  Director Secretary Report.

 14            MS. RAMOS:  The notice of intent to hold this

 15  public hearing was published in the following

 16  publications:  Armenian Media Network, Crescenta Valley

 17  Weekly, The Daily Breeze, Daily News Los Angeles,

 18  Eastside Sun, the Korea Times, Los Angeles Sentinel, La

 19  Opinion, Panorama Russian Newspaper, Rafu Shimpo

 20  Japanese Paper, San Fernando Sun, Siamtownus, Southwest

 21  Wave, Watts Times, and World Journal Chinese Daily News.

 22  The notice was also posted on the Internet and

 23  distributed via take-one brochures aboard Metro buses

 24  and trains.

 25            Affidavits of publication are filed with the
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 01  Metro Secretary and are available in the Secretary's

 02  Office for review.

 03            This concludes my report.

 04            MR. CANO:  Thank you, Dolores.

 05            Service Development Manager Stand-In, Israel

 06  Marin -- what is your official title?

 07            MR. MARIN:  I'm still working on that myself.

 08  I guess we can go for "Metro staff" for now.

 09            MR. CANO:  Supreme overlord of Service

 10  Development?

 11            MR. MARIN:  Yes.

 12            MR. CANO:  Mr. Israel Marin will now detail

 13  the proposed service changes, focusing on changes

 14  proposed within the San Fernando Valley, after which the

 15  public comment portion of this hearing will begin.

 16  Persons who have asked to testify this evening will be

 17  called in the order in which they turned in a "Request

 18  to Speak" form.

 19            Some of you had some question marks about

 20  which item.  You are all speaking on Item 4.  So I will

 21  call you up -- even if you put Item 3, I will call you

 22  up at Item No. 4.

 23            If anyone here has not already done so and

 24  wishes to comment on the proposed changes, please fill

 25  out a form.  Mr. Henry over there has one.  So you get
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 01  that from him, and just submit it so we can call you up

 02  for the record.

 03            Each person providing comments tonight will be

 04  limited to two minutes; so pack in your comments into

 05  that time frame, please.

 06            Mr. Marin, I will now call you up.

 07            MR. MARIN:  Thank you, and good evening.  As

 08  we mentioned, Mr. Page will not be here tonight; so I

 09  will be presenting on the changes on -- proposed changes

 10  on Line 91.

 11            The first map I'd like to show shows the

 12  current service we have in the Montrose area.  There is

 13  only two -- basically two major differences between

 14  Lines 90 and 91, and the first one is in the Montrose

 15  area.

 16            Line 91 takes a little bit of -- or has a

 17  slightly different route.  It services Honolulu and La

 18  Crescenta and a portion of Foothill not served by Line

 19  90.  And then they meet up again north of Pennsylvania

 20  and Foothill.  And anything south of Honolulu on Verdugo

 21  is essentially the same.

 22            The other major difference is that Line 91 is

 23  essentially the smaller version, a shorter version of

 24  Line 90.

 25            As the map shows, because of the difference in
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 01  routes, we have -- we currently have 30 to 60 minutes on

 02  the two different segments.  And 15 to 30 minutes

 03  combined frequencies on the rest of the route where the

 04  Lines 90 and 91 are combined.

 05            And I just wanted to point out that the

 06  lighter blue line, that's Beeline service for Beeline 3.

 07            So the issue is that -- if I go back one of

 08  the slides, the issue is actually -- the reason why we

 09  are all here presenting Line 91 for public hearing is

 10  there is a difficult right turn from Ocean View

 11  Boulevard to Honolulu Avenue.  The street is at a

 12  sharper-than-90-degree angle, which makes it very

 13  difficult for our buses, whether they be 40- or 45-foot

 14  buses to complete their right turn without having

 15  issues.

 16            We currently -- we have had a few accidents in

 17  the past, and division management has been very

 18  concerned for this for a while now.  The -- currently,

 19  if all buses, if they want to make a right turn, there's

 20  a designated right-turn pocket.  Buses -- there's not a

 21  single bus using the right-turn pocket to complete their

 22  right turn.  They basically have to wait for all traffic

 23  to clear on Ocean View and take a portion of the through

 24  lane and turn right onto Honolulu.

 25            And even with opening up the turn to complete
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 01  that turn, it still gets a little bit more difficult if

 02  there's traffic on Honolulu.  And usually buses start to

 03  become -- get very, very close about the third car

 04  behind the limit line.  In the past, we have had some

 05  incidents where buses lightly tapping other vehicles.

 06  And oftentimes, what you'll see the most is biting the

 07  curb here.

 08            And following the last meeting, last time we

 09  were here, we did talk to the City about possibly

 10  removing this bulb out, and their answer was basically

 11  no, that that wasn't an option due to the design and

 12  amenities that they would have to relocate and the

 13  general design of the street.

 14            So we have come to the -- we have come to the

 15  Service Council to present two options.  We will call

 16  one Option A and the other one Option B.

 17            Option A basically -- by the way, this only

 18  affects our Line 91 in the northbound direction.  Option

 19  B basically continues northbound on Verdugo to Montrose

 20  Avenue, similar to what Line 90 does today.  And

 21  everything north of La Crescenta and Montrose, it

 22  continues with what Line 91 does normally.

 23            We are not proposing to change the frequency

 24  of any of the service or the amount of service or the

 25  span of service on any of the proposed -- on any of the
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 01  proposals.  This is strictly for a difficult turning

 02  movement.

 03            And I will be showing the ridership on

 04  Honolulu in the next slide or two to give you guys an

 05  idea of the ridership in the area.

 06            The proposed Option B is basically to have the

 07  same route for Lines 90 and 91.  So essentially, having

 08  just one route pass through the Montrose area that would

 09  be creating only one route through Montrose Avenue.  So

 10  from Verdugo through Montrose Avenue, and then

 11  Pennsylvania to Foothill, which is exactly what our Line

 12  90 does today.

 13            And again, as I mentioned, this also doesn't

 14  affect the frequency of service or the span of service

 15  in any way.  And patrons on the Montrose segment of

 16  Pennsylvania who are -- usually have their service cut

 17  in half or, you know, share their amount of service with

 18  the rest of the segment will now see a more standard

 19  type of service there in that area.

 20            And just I do -- since the last meeting we had

 21  here, we did speak with the Crescenta Valley Town

 22  Council and the Montrose Parks -- the Montrose Shopping

 23  Park Association.  And we had a -- we have had long

 24  discussions with them as well as city officials that

 25  were present, and they expressed their concerns.  And we
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 01  will be noting their concerns as part of the revised

 02  report back to the Council in September.

 03            The current map shows the ridership on the

 04  entire area that we are proposing that will be affected.

 05            MR. HILLMER:  What is boarding and alighting?

 06            MR. MARIN:  Boardings are on the right.  And

 07  it may be difficult to see.  There's a slash on the

 08  left.  On the left, you have the boardings.  On the

 09  right, you have the alightings.  And we do them by

 10  direction.  So depending how you look at the map, the

 11  right side would be northbound.  The left side would be

 12  southbound.

 13            There would be approximately 84 people that

 14  would be affected on Honolulu.  If additional people --

 15  I'm sorry -- 84 people on Honolulu and approximately 90

 16  people additionally if we were to streamline service

 17  including the 90 and 91, if we make that into one

 18  continuous line.

 19            MR. CANO:  Israel, before you leave there, I'd

 20  like to point out that that third of a mile is not flat.

 21  It's a steep grade up Ocean View and the different

 22  streets.

 23            MR. MARIN:  Duly noted.  It's definitely not

 24  flat.

 25            MR. CANO:  It's not something that someone in
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 01  a wheelchair could propel themselves up.  It's not like

 02  here.

 03            MR. MARIN:  Correct.

 04            With that said, of course the reason we are

 05  here is to take public comment, and we will -- I will

 06  take public comment now.

 07            MR. CANO:  Thank you, Mr. Marin.  I appreciate

 08  it.

 09            I will now open the hearing for public

 10  comments.  Again, you may comment on basically just this

 11  line.  If you have general comments about other service

 12  in other parts of the region, please hold that for

 13  another time.  We are focused only on this specific

 14  change that has been proposed that we are getting input

 15  on.  Please limit your comments to this line.

 16            And any comments received on this line will be

 17  kept as part of the record.  And if you have comments on

 18  other lines, usually we have other lines offered, we

 19  would keep that too.  But today, we have just this line

 20  here.

 21            Again, if there's anyone that still has not

 22  filled out a card, I have quite a few here.  Please

 23  limit yourself to two minutes.  And if you do not want

 24  to provide oral testimony, if you want to provide

 25  written testimony, again, you can provide written
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 01  comments by mail or e-mail that will still count as much

 02  as this.

 03            I'll call the first person up and the person

 04  following.  The first person is Kim Kelley of the

 05  Montrose Shopping Park Association, followed by Gigi

 06  Garcia.  Kim Kelley, please.  And then Garcia.

 07            MS. KELLEY:  I'm Kim Kelley.  I am a business

 08  owner in Montrose for the last 21 years.  I'm also the

 09  secretary on the Montrose Shopping Park Board.  I don't

 10  have as much to say as they do; so I'll keep mine brief.

 11            As a business owner, we do need that exposure

 12  along Honolulu Avenue.  And that's the biggest concern

 13  we have.  We do have seniors that come into our shop.  I

 14  have a lot of different ages of people that shop with

 15  me.  And to lose that for seniors, for students, for

 16  employees of the shopping park, it's, you know -- we

 17  need to come to some sort of a solution with this.

 18            And we're feeling as if, from Montrose, that

 19  we're not getting a lot of support for this.  So my

 20  biggest thing is we don't want to lose that along

 21  Honolulu Avenue.  That being said, thank you.

 22            MR. CANO:  Thank you very much.  Next up,

 23  Ms. Garcia.  And then following will be Bill Weisman

 24  from the City of Glendale.

 25            MS. GARCIA:  Hi.  Thank you for hearing us
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 01  tonight.  My name is Gigi Garcia.  I'm the vice

 02  president of Montrose Shopping Park Association.  I

 03  represent 180 small businesses in the area.  I'm also a

 04  resident and a small business owner myself.

 05            Removing the 91 from Honolulu would be

 06  detrimental to small businesses, employees, residents,

 07  students, seniors that live in the area and have no

 08  other means of transportation.

 09            The Montrose Shopping Park is prepared to give

 10  and has suggested several alternative routes to make

 11  this route safe and secure its future on Honolulu.

 12            Please do not remove public transit from a

 13  business district and reroute to a residential area that

 14  is now proposed or remove it altogether.  The Montrose

 15  Shopping Park is adamantly opposed to this, and so am I

 16  as a business owner and a resident.

 17            Thank you all for your consideration on this

 18  matter.

 19            I would also like to say we were unaware of

 20  the proposal that was made to cut that corner, the

 21  Shopping Park Association was.  Not to say that we can

 22  do it without support from the City, but we are willing

 23  to work with you all.

 24            It has been proposed for to us give away six

 25  of our parking spots right on the corner of Verdugo and
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 01  Honolulu.  And right now, we do not want to give up

 02  parking.  There is so little parking in that area, if

 03  you are familiar with it, to begin with that that would

 04  probably be one of our last options.  But we do want to

 05  secure its future.

 06            Thank you so much.

 07            MR. CANO:  Thank you for your comments.

 08            Next up is Bill Weisman from the City of

 09  Glendale, followed by Robbyn Battles, the president of

 10  CV Town Council.

 11            MR. WEISMAN:  Good evening, Service Council

 12  Members, Staff, and Public.  My name is Bill Weisman,

 13  only one S.  Not related, as far as I know, to your vice

 14  chair.  I want to clarify that I'm speaking tonight as a

 15  private citizen.  Although I do not represent the City

 16  of Glendale, I did serve five years as a transportation

 17  and parking commissioner for the City, and I currently

 18  serve as vice chair of the Metro Citizens Advisory

 19  Council.

 20            I have to say I'm well aware of the unsafe

 21  turn situation that currently exists at the intersection

 22  of Ocean View and Honolulu.  I spent a lot of time on

 23  that intersection.  I have observed many near-accidents.

 24  I have observed the great skill that the bus drivers

 25  have to display to make it through there safely.  And I
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 01  have seen occasions where the buses have had to wait for

 02  a long time for traffic to clear or the tires have

 03  ridden up on the corridor where the bulb out is.

 04            There are two main issues regarding the

 05  service change that I would like to emphasize.  The

 06  first one is that we really need -- and I also live in

 07  the area.  So I'm fairly -- often I'm driving on the

 08  streets and observe the conditions.

 09            We really need to continue bus service on La

 10  Crescenta Avenue, especially for our local students.  So

 11  I would recommend against Option B for that reason.

 12            And really as a long-term solution, we need

 13  Metro bus service going to the heart of the Montrose

 14  Shopping Park.  The reason is Montrose is Glendale's --

 15  the Montrose area there along Honolulu is Glendale's

 16  official Old Town.  And after the Americana at Brand and

 17  the Glendale Galleria, the Montrose Shopping Park is the

 18  third largest source of sales tax revenue for the City

 19  of Glendale.

 20            For that reason, we think it is really

 21  important to maintain service into the shopping park.  A

 22  short-term diversion onto Florencita might be possible.

 23  But the long-term solution, we need the bus in the

 24  shopping park.  Thank you.

 25            MR. CANO:  Thank you very much.  Appreciate
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 01  it.

 02            Next up, Robbyn Battles.  Welcome.

 03            MS. BATTLES:  Good evening.  My name is Robbyn

 04  Battles, and I am the president of Crescenta Valley Town

 05  Council.

 06            And if I could have you look at this map for a

 07  moment because if you're not familiar with our

 08  community, we are partially the City of Glendale, and we

 09  are partially the unincorporated area of L.A. County,

 10  which is the area that I represent.

 11            If you look at this line just north of the

 12  Montrose Shopping Park, that big kind of yellowed-out

 13  area is our high school.  And just above that is -- next

 14  to it is the elementary school.

 15            So cutting this line was one of the options,

 16  and I'm going to say to you you need to take that off

 17  the table.  You cannot eliminate this line.

 18            The next thing I would ask of you is

 19  wholeheartedly we're trying to work out a solution that

 20  complements saving La Crescenta and saving our Montrose

 21  Shopping Park.  In order to do that, we have so many

 22  different County and City entities involved, we would

 23  ask you to table this decision for some time because

 24  there has not been enough discussion between the

 25  Shopping Park, the County, and the City of Glendale.
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 01            I have also -- Michael, you should have the

 02  letter tomorrow -- sent you a letter that outlines some

 03  of the options we would like to see.  But I would like

 04  to see this whole process slow down.

 05            We understand Ocean View is a dangerous turn.

 06  We have given you a temporary alternative if you feel

 07  you need to move it immediately.  But we need to get it

 08  back to the Shopping Park, and we need to keep it along

 09  La Crescenta.  It's our only line that goes up La

 10  Crescenta and out Foothill.

 11            Thank you very much.

 12            MR. CANO:  Thank you.  Appreciate it very

 13  much.

 14            Robert Sandoval and then Ms. Kathryn Engel,

 15  former Service Council member.

 16            MR. SANDOVAL:  Hi.  I'm Robert Sandoval.  I'm

 17  a longtime Metro utilizer, if you will.  I recently got

 18  back from the Carlsbad area utilizing the Red Line,

 19  Amtrak, and their local BREEZE.  I did that for a year

 20  successfully through our public transportation, if you

 21  will.

 22            My issue today is with the general system

 23  here -- it's not broken, but when I utilize it to go on

 24  interviews as I have done the past couple months in

 25  Irwindale.  Metro ends here, and some other system
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 01  starts there.  And I have been late for one interview.

 02  I don't know if that was part of the reason I didn't get

 03  it.  But the second interview, I made sure I was there

 04  on time.

 05            So if you can on your website or your

 06  information that you distribute to the public include a

 07  mile or five or three or whatever to the next system,

 08  the next county, the next system, if you will, that

 09  would be quite useful.

 10            Second point, I utilize the website for your

 11  next bus function.  It will say five minutes.  I will be

 12  out there -- or nine minutes, and I'll be out there in

 13  seven or six, maybe push eight.  But bam, it's gone two

 14  minutes ago.  So there's like a five-minute, six-,

 15  seven-minute leeway window.  Can you get it more

 16  accurate?  Can you make it track better?

 17            I don't know how your system is.  I'm an

 18  electronic engineer and technician.  Maybe I can fix it,

 19  but that's not the point.  I'm sure you have smart

 20  people that can make it a little more accurate.

 21            Thirdly, when a driver leaves, sometimes they

 22  don't say anything.  They just take off.  People in

 23  other public transportation say, "All aboard,"

 24  "Leaving," something, bark something out, honk the horn,

 25  but don't just take off.  A lot of us are going to jobs
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 01  or doctors or whatever.  So can you make that a standard

 02  rule or look into it, talk about it?  Let's make it more

 03  efficient.

 04            MR. CANO:  Thank you.  We'll take those

 05  comments under advisement.  Thank you.

 06            Kathryn Engel, welcome back.

 07            MS. ENGEL:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

 08            MR. CANO:  And following will be Andre

 09  Ordubegian.

 10            MS. ENGEL:  Good evening, Mr. Chair and

 11  Members of the Council.  I am Kathryn Engel, transit

 12  manager for the City of Glendale.  I want to compliment

 13  Metro staff and our community members, Montrose Shopping

 14  Park Association, and the CV Town Council for coming

 15  together and having a lot of discussions about what our

 16  options are.

 17            I think everyone recognizes that we have a

 18  safety issue at the current intersection of Ocean View

 19  and Honolulu.  And I know there's an interest in trying

 20  to make some decisions fairly quickly.

 21            But as Ms. Battles indicated earlier, there

 22  are a number of sometimes competing interests, parking

 23  versus buses, merchants versus people trying to get

 24  through traffic, how the buses actually maneuver with

 25  40- and 45-feet buses on a street that was designed for
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 01  20- and 30-foot buses back in the day.

 02            We have a lot of energy and have had a lot of

 03  really good discussions looking at options.  Staff has

 04  been around with members of the Shopping Park Board and

 05  the CV Town Council members walking the street, looking

 06  at options, looking at what aesthetics we might be

 07  willing to give up for operational needs.

 08            But because it's so complicated and like we

 09  said, there are so many different entities involved in

 10  the process, it's going to take us more time to really

 11  resolve and have a long-term solution.

 12            So I think we might recognize there are some

 13  short-term things that may need to be done on looking at

 14  the safety issues.  But long term, I think there is an

 15  interest in providing decent service to the Shopping

 16  Park but making it also safe for the people using the

 17  buses and also accommodate the needs of the Shopping

 18  Park for people coming to shop in that area.

 19            The city doesn't, from the transit piece,

 20  doesn't support Option B.  We really think distributing

 21  the service between the whole area is probably better

 22  off and complements what the line is doing currently.

 23            Again, long term, I think we take a look at it

 24  every once in a while and say, "Does this still make

 25  sense?"
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 01            MR. CANO:  Quick question for you and

 02  Ms. Battles.  How much time do you think you do need to

 03  go through and weigh the options and come to some

 04  consensus?  A couple months?

 05            I'm understanding if we don't act in

 06  September, because that's where the December shake-up

 07  is, then obviously we probably have another six months

 08  to act on this.

 09            MR. HILLMER:  Depending on how large the

 10  modification is, we might wait until the following June.

 11  Or if it's relatively small, we could do it sometime in

 12  between.

 13            MR. CANO:  Obviously, I mean, how much time do

 14  you need?  But -- what do you envision?

 15            MS. BATTLES:  Well, I would, just for business

 16  reasons, I would like to see them get through the

 17  holidays and keep that service because I think with -- I

 18  mean, just -- they only meet once a month.  So, I mean,

 19  we lose a month without thinking about it.  So I would

 20  say if we could come back to you, say, in January,

 21  February, that would really give us plenty of time

 22  because we have to go to the City, go back to the

 23  County.  There are so many entities.  We would really

 24  need January, February.

 25            MR. CANO:  That's good to know.  Let me take
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 01  the rest of the comments, and then -- thank you,

 02  Ms. Engel.  Appreciate it.

 03            Andre?

 04            MR. ORDUBEGIAN:  Good evening, ladies and

 05  gentlemen.  My name is Andre Ordubegian.  I'm the

 06  president of Montrose Shopping Park Association.

 07            I'm just here to tell you that the Metro line

 08  is very essential to our community, to all of our

 09  residents, merchants, people who visit our town,

 10  students, and everybody else.

 11            As far as the alternative options we have for

 12  the bus line, we already met with City officials as well

 13  as Metro people, and we are willing to do all sorts of

 14  alterations to the streets, to the parking we have, and

 15  to the stop places that we have for the buses that we

 16  understand they are kind of short and not adequate; so

 17  we even talked about enlarging those as well.

 18            Again, as everybody mentioned, if you can hold

 19  on to your decisions until we decide what we can do, and

 20  at that point, we can go forward.

 21            All of us are involved, and all of us are

 22  invested in this whole community.  So all the help we

 23  can get from you and the City of Glendale is greatly

 24  appreciated.  Thank you very much.

 25            MR. CANO:  Thank you for being here.
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 01  Appreciate it very much.

 02            Vince Garofalo.  I'm going to ask you to keep

 03  your comments on this specific -- Vince, I'm going to

 04  ask you to keep your comments specifically to this item,

 05  please.

 06            MR. GAROFALO:  I will.

 07            MR. CANO:  Thank you.

 08            MR. GAROFALO:  I just have a side comment, if

 09  you will, with regard to the issue of personal

 10  transparency.  The comments of Kymberleigh Richards were

 11  not addressed or mentioned other than said that they

 12  were said.  I would like to know what the individual

 13  said.

 14            Secondly, the Line 91 needs to be kicked

 15  upstairs for the sake of the people I see every night.

 16            MR. CANO:  Thank you.  Appreciate it.

 17            Last to speak, I have cards for Andrew Wang

 18  and Robert Van Peer.  If anyone else wishes to speak,

 19  you have a couple of minutes left.

 20            Mr. Wang.

 21            MR. WANG:  Hi.  I'm Andrew Wang.  Apparently,

 22  once again, I'm representing LACBC, which you probably

 23  all know what it is already.  Or do you need me to tell

 24  you what that is again?

 25            Regarding this line is like -- regarding that
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 01  particular intersection that you guys were addressing

 02  safety issues on, perhaps what can also be looked into

 03  is to do an intersection study about that intersection

 04  where the service goes upon.  I'm just bringing that as

 05  a possible suggestion to that.

 06            Possibly do an intersection study and see if

 07  maybe there's any necessary modification of the

 08  intersection such as traffic signal modifications or

 09  traffic signal add-ons to make the intersection more

 10  safer, which is partly to say if that intersection

 11  happens to be permissive only turn intersection, perhaps

 12  possibly add on a protected left turn arrow traffic

 13  signal or maybe a protected permissive traffic signal.

 14            But the kind of signal I would think upon for

 15  that part of the intersection to refrain from putting on

 16  would be the ones without the red arrow will be the one

 17  to refrain from.  Probably also maybe sure ones that

 18  they put in the ones with the red arrows, if they want

 19  to add in a protective phasing, if it currently is only

 20  permissive.

 21            So actually what I'm talking about is that

 22  particular intersection where the service goes on that

 23  is where safety was addressed.  And I think that's

 24  pretty much it.

 25            MR. CANO:  Thank you very much for your time,
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 01  Mr. Wang.

 02            Last to speak is Robert Van Peer.

 03            MR. VAN PEER:  That's me.  I would like, if I

 04  may -- may I make some comment?  I need to point to the

 05  map.

 06            MS. RAMOS:  We can get a pointer.

 07            MR. VAN PEER:  Very well.  I want to make sure

 08  I --

 09            MR. CANO:  Please address the microphone and

 10  we can take your comment on it.

 11            MR. VAN PEER:  That's the front.  Okay.  Now,

 12  am I correct in assuming that that line, not the one --

 13  the one going south and then going on Honolulu Avenue,

 14  that is the intersection in question; is that right?  I

 15  don't live in the area.

 16            MR. MARIN:  The intersection in question, if I

 17  could borrow this for a second.  It's Ocean View to

 18  Honolulu.

 19            MR. VAN PEER:  That's what I was asking.

 20  That's the intersection in question.  Now, the La

 21  Crescenta market area is the area along Robertson

 22  Avenue.  Am I correct?  Is that -- I believe that's what

 23  they were saying.  It's La Crescenta.

 24            MR. MARIN:  No.  It's the Montrose Shopping

 25  Park Association.
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 01            MR. VAN PEER:  Here is what I'm looking at,

 02  then.  What it seems to me is that the turn onto

 03  Florencita creates two turns that aren't necessary.  It

 04  would be a lot more efficient if you go straight from

 05  Verdugo onto Honolulu.  I think that would be the

 06  obvious and most efficient solution.

 07            MR. CANO:  Thank you for your time.

 08            We -- everyone, please, be quiet.  Thank you.

 09  Thank you for your comments.  That issue has been

 10  brought up.  Perhaps if you want to speak a couple

 11  seconds on that particularly?

 12            MR. HILLMER:  That was a route of this line

 13  for many, many, many years.  But when the intersection

 14  was reconfigured I believe about four or five years ago,

 15  it prevented a safe left-hand turn there; so that route

 16  was modified to its current configuration.

 17            MR. WEISSMAN:  Is there a difference in the

 18  size of the Beeline bus and the Metro bus?

 19            MR. HILLMER:  Yes.  Beeline buses are smaller.

 20  They are 32 feet.

 21            MR. CANO:  What is the headway for the Beeline

 22  on that route?

 23            MR. MARIN:  It's approximately 15 minutes.

 24            MS. ENGEL:  It's about 40 minutes.

 25            MR. MARIN:  It's 30 minutes.
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 01            MS. ENGEL:  And then it cycles through in 40

 02  minutes.

 03            MR. CANO:  This concludes the public comment

 04  portion of the public hearing.  I open the floor now to

 05  any Council members who have any comments they would

 06  like to make at this time.

 07            Mr. Washburn.

 08            MR. WASHBURN:  If someone would walk me back

 09  through back on the primary map here where we see Ocean

 10  View and Florencita and Honolulu.  Take the pointer and

 11  show me what the circulation looks like.  Walk me

 12  through it going southbound on Montrose, southbound from

 13  La Crescenta on Montrose.

 14            MR. MARIN:  Starting from southbound, you are

 15  coming down La Crescenta.  You make a left on Honolulu,

 16  and than a right turn on Verdugo Road.  Southbound is

 17  not the issue.

 18            MR. WASHBURN:  Right.

 19            MR. MARIN:  The issue is northbound.  You are

 20  coming northbound on Verdugo Road.  You are making a

 21  left turn on Florencita, a left turn on Ocean View

 22  Boulevard, and a right turn, which is the intersection

 23  in question.

 24            MR. WASHBURN:  That's where we have the bulb

 25  out and the trees and all the other issues?
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 01            MR. MARIN:  Exactly.  That is this right here.

 02            MR. WASHBURN:  It isn't clear to me.

 03            MR. CANO:  That's Ocean View.

 04            MR. WASHBURN:  This is Ocean View onto

 05  Honolulu?

 06            MR. MARIN:  This would be Ocean View, and this

 07  is Honolulu.

 08            MR. WASHBURN:  The street that precedes

 09  Honolulu where there is a white car coming out --

 10            AUDIENCE MEMBER:  Sorry to misspeak.  But

 11  that's the alley.

 12            MR. CANO:  You can see a stoplight farther up

 13  the street.  That's Florencita.

 14            MR. WASHBURN:  So there isn't another

 15  opportunity to get onto Honolulu other than through this

 16  entrance?

 17            MR. CANO:  Ocean View is pretty much the most

 18  major street, the first major street you hit.

 19            MR. HILLMER:  We are actually on Florencita on

 20  Sundays when there is a farmers market that takes place

 21  and closes down the street.  Florencita is a residential

 22  community.  We could operate there.  It is a safe place

 23  to operate a bus.  But it is a residential community.

 24  We are not sure they would be receptive to 40- and

 25  45-foot buses operating on their street seven days a
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 01  week.

 02            MR. WASHBURN:  And particularly farmers market

 03  day.

 04            MR. MARIN:  And also, we don't have any stops

 05  along that extension of Florencita which we run on

 06  Sundays.  Operators may drop patrons off to their

 07  discretion wherever they feel safe.  So we are still, in

 08  a sense, skipping or bypassing the Shopping Center on

 09  Honolulu.  However, this is only -- we can only do this

 10  on Sundays only.

 11            So residents are not used to Monday through

 12  Friday seeing a bus.  And it is medium-density

 13  residential.

 14            MR. WASHBURN:  Would you indulge me one more

 15  time and continue northbound on La Crescenta.  That is

 16  apparently serving the high school and the elementary

 17  school.  But La Crescenta itself is the vertical line we

 18  are looking at in the middle of this diagram; correct?

 19            MR. MARIN:  Right.

 20            MR. WASHBURN:  One of the alternatives is to

 21  propose a deletion of service on La Crescenta?

 22            MR. MARIN:  One of the alternatives is to

 23  completely eliminate service on La Crescenta, which is

 24  Option B.  And Option A is to resume service north of

 25  Montrose on La Crescenta.  So you would be missing this
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 01  segment, in a sense.

 02            MR. WASHBURN:  Thank you.  I didn't understand

 03  quite what was being added, even though I see A and B.

 04  It wasn't clear what the dynamics of the system are.

 05            MR. CANO:  Mr. Bric?

 06            MR. BRIC:  I want to thank the ten speakers

 07  that came before us.  And I understand the sensitivity

 08  of some of the businesspeople in that area and stuff

 09  like that.  I especially appreciate their comments about

 10  the holidays coming up and possibly tabling this for a

 11  little bit if it's at all possible for the merchants up

 12  there.  Being a small businessman myself, I know exactly

 13  where you folks are coming from.

 14            So I wouldn't have a problem after the public

 15  hearing if they waited on the decision.  This isn't a

 16  cut-off-the-arm type of thing.

 17            I understand the liability of the bus veering

 18  out a little bit to make that right-hand turn.  There

 19  are some safety issues there.  But hopefully they will

 20  weigh all that in their decision.

 21            MR. CANO:  Mr. Ochoa?

 22            MR. OCHOA:  No comment.

 23            MR. CANO:  Vice chair?

 24            MR. WEISSMAN:  Nothing further.

 25            MR. CANO:  I want to make some comments
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 01  personally.  This is my hometown.  I grew up on

 02  Prospect.  I took this bus.  I use it.  This is -- I

 03  understand very clearly the impacts here.

 04            I personally don't see how we can go with

 05  Option B.

 06            I think we definitely need to let the

 07  stakeholders that have come together continue to work

 08  this out.  I would like to at least keep the process

 09  going in September.  I think that's when you take

 10  official action, if that's what the will of the Council

 11  would be, to defer it or postpone it.

 12            I think I would like to give the Crescenta

 13  Valley Town Council and Montrose Business Association

 14  and the County and whoever else you need to get together

 15  to continue working on the problem.

 16            I would like the Metro staff to commit to

 17  continue being there.  I personally would be more than

 18  happy to come to any of these meetings to participate.

 19  I know this is very important, and I think we need a

 20  positive solution here.  Let's continue to work on that

 21  in the meantime.

 22            But in terms of tonight, this is just public

 23  input.  We have heard a lot of it, and we have heard a

 24  recurring theme as to what we need to be working on.

 25  With that --
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 01            MR. WASHBURN:  Chair, before you adjourn the

 02  meeting, can I ask another question?

 03            MR. CANO:  Sure.

 04            MR. WASHBURN:  There's obviously a need to try

 05  to minimize our liability or any potential negative

 06  consequences from the current circulation system and the

 07  impacts essentially on the bus and on -- the buses and

 08  on the space.

 09            Do we have the mechanisms to provide on a

 10  temporary basis white-glove help to be able to get

 11  folks, you know, to yield to the buses as they make the

 12  wide swing in order to make the right-hand turn onto

 13  Honolulu?

 14            If we need a nominal investment in traffic

 15  control, essentially, in order to ensure while we are

 16  studying the matter further that there isn't increased

 17  incidence opportunities.  You know, frankly, just asking

 18  Glendale police or Metro police or whoever to have the

 19  white-glove capability there for those times during the

 20  day when it is a critical issue.

 21            MR. CANO:  Probably be City of Glendale Police

 22  Force.

 23            MR. HILLMER:  Could be Glendale Police Force.

 24  It would be seven days a week for a spread of about 16

 25  to 18 hours a day.
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 01            MR. WASHBURN:  Well, that's to do complete

 02  service, but there are peaks, I'm sure, where the

 03  traffic on Florencita -- or Ocean View, I'm sorry, are

 04  particularly unyielding to the needs of the bus as it

 05  makes its turns.  It might be rush hour or shopping

 06  hours like from 9:00 when the stores are open until 4:00

 07  or 5:00, something to that effect.

 08            But it would be an awful lot cheaper, it seems

 09  to me, to have somebody available to guide the traffic

 10  to allow the bus to move until we can make a better

 11  solution.

 12            MR. HILLMER:  We can approach the City of

 13  Glendale to see if they would be willing to do such a

 14  thing.

 15            MR. WASHBURN:  Could be the businesspeople

 16  also have ideas on how to obtain that temporary fix

 17  while we deal with the longer-term issues.

 18            MR. CANO:  Okay.  Fair point.  Thank you very

 19  much.

 20            With that, we will conclude, and we will

 21  adjourn this meeting.

 22            Thank you for everyone who came out tonight,

 23  and I appreciate your comments.

 24  

 25            (The meeting was adjourned at 8:14 p.m.)
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